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Chairman’s Statement
FREE

To our Shareholders

In 2012, the Group reported a profit attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$206,258,000 as
compared to a loss of HK$155,255,000 in last year.
The turnaround in the Group’s performance in 2012
is mainly attributable to a HK$252,523,000 decrease
in impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible
assets and a HK$167,180,000 increase in gain arising
on change in fair value of investment properties. The
Group recorded a core profit before taxation and
major non-cash items of HK$44,363,000 for 2012,
a 39.09% decrease from HK$72,833,000 for 2011.
Such decrease is attributable to the decrease in
management services fee income from HK$78,893,000
to HK$51,078,000 resulted from the termination of one
of our management services agreements in September
2012.

During the year, we entered into the following two
transactions for improving our earnings:

(@) in January 2012, we expanded into money
lending business in Hong Kong by acquiring
the entire issued shares in and the sale loan
due by Hong Kong Builders Finance Limited, a
Hong Kong company engaged in money lending
business. Our newly expanded money lending
business generated interest income on loans of
HK$9,785,000 in 2012; and

(b) in August 2012, we acquired approximately
29% interest in the issued share capital of
China Media and Films Holdings Limited
(“China Media”), a company engaged in artist
management and film production and distribution,
from Culture Landmark Investment Limited
(“Culture Landmark”), a company engaged
in property investment, license fees collection
business, entertainment business and hotel
and restaurant operations, for the purpose of
revitalising our film distribution business. As we
have a difficult time finding and sourcing quality
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films for distribution on commercially viable
terms and profitability for the Group over the last
few years, we believe that taking an investment
in China Media enables the Group to (i) form
a strategic alliance with Culture Landmark and
China Media leveraging on each respective
strengths; and (ii) secure a stable supply of films
from China Media for distribution. However, the
benefit for taking an investment in China Media
has not yet been reflected on our performance
in 2012 as two films are still being produced by
China Media.

In 2011, we have successfully expanded into
property investment business. During the year,
we took initiatives for realising certain of our
investment properties. In April 2012, we disposed
of the residential property located in Tseung Kwan
O, New Territories, Hong Kong at a consideration
of HK$7,950,000. In October 2012, we disposed of
the car parking space located in Tseung Kwan O,
New Territories, Hong Kong at a consideration of
HK$686,000. In November 2012, we entered into
a preliminary sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party for disposing of the
investment properties (the “Kwun Tong Property”)
located in Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a
consideration of HK$586,000,000, which exceeds its
fair value at 31 December 2011 by HK$151,000,000.
The proposed disposal of the Kwun Tong Property
was approved by our shareholders on 9 January
2013 and we expect the proposed disposal will
be completed in the second quarter of 2013. In
August 2012, we acquired two three-storey New
Territories Small Houses located in Ma Yau Tong,
Sai Kung, New Territories, Hong Kong at a total
consideration of HK$21,438,000. These two three-
storey New Territories Small Houses are held as long-
term investments for rental purposes. The business
development of our property investment business in
2012 demonstrates that our strategy for expanding
into new business is proper for strengthening our
earnings and shareholders’ value.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREE

As the proposed disposal of the Kwun Tong Property
has not yet been completed, the Kwun Tong Property
is reported as “assets classified as held for sale” at
31 December 2012 for financial reporting purpose
and is revalued upwards to its market value of
HK$603,000,000 at 31 December 2012 in accordance
with the financial reporting standards. Such market
value of HK$603,000,000 exceeds the consideration
by HK$17,000,000. Accordingly, we expect to report
a loss on disposal of the Kwun Tong Property of
HK$17,000,000 plus transaction costs to be incurred
upon completion in 2013.

The outlook for 2013 remains uncertain as we
grapple with the same issues that have hung over
us for several years now: the Eurozone debt crisis,
fragile state of economic recovery in the United
States and fears of a slowdown in Mainland China.
Given the uncertain backdrop, we will continue to
solidify our fundamentals by refining our business
operations and developing our existing businesses
in a cautious manner. However, we recognise that
continued uncertainty often coincides with a good
opportunity to invest. That is why we are actively
looking at possible property investment projects and/
or other business investments in order to diversify our
businesses and broaden our revenue base. To manage
risk conservatively, we will invest in businesses
with predictable, consistent cashflows and simple,
understandable business models.

As always | would like to take this opportunity to
extend our appreciation to all fellow directors and
employees for their invaluable efforts, dedication
and commitment to the Group and to thank all
shareholders and business associates for their
continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of operations

The Group recorded a turnover of HK$67,442,000
for the year ended 31 December 2012, a 14.82%
decrease from HK$79,174,000 for the previous year.
Of the total turnover amount, HK$51,078,000 or
75.74% was generated from provision of management
services, HK$9,785,000 or 14.51% was generated
from money lending, HK$5,930,000 or 8.79% was
generated from property investment and HK$649,000
or 0.96% was generated from sale of financial
assets. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted
to HK$206,259,000, whereas the Group recorded
a loss of HK$155,255,000 for the previous year.
The turnaround on the Group’s performance was
mainly attributable to a HK$252,523,000 decrease in
impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible
assets and a HK$167,180,000 increase in gain arising
on change in fair value of investment properties.

Investment and other income decreased by 83.12%
from HK$15,411,000 in the year ended 31 December
2011 to HK$2,601,000 in the year ended 31 December
2012. This decrease was attributable to the decrease
in interest income on bank deposits and the
absence of special dividend income from China Star
Entertainment Limited (“China Star”, stock code:
326).

Other gains and losses represent items of income
and expense, which are material and/or extraordinary
in nature. Major items of other gains and losses
recorded during the year are as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEHEWE S

the directors reassessed the fair value of
investment properties held by the Group at
the end of the reporting period with reference
to the property valuations performed by the
independent professional valuers and, in light of
the recent increase in property prices in Hong
Kong, a gain arising on change in fair value of
investment properties of HK$168,592,000 was
recognised;

in the second half of 2011, the Group subscribed
for the first tranche of convertible notes of
HK$350,000,000 issued by China Star and the
convertible notes of HK$75,000,000 issued by
Culture Landmark Investment Limited (“Culture
Landmark”, stock code: 674) at their face
value. In March 2012, the Group subscribed for
a convertible note of HK$27,000,000 issued by
Koffman Corporate Service Limited (“Koffman”),
a Hong Kong private company, at its face value.
Accordingly, the Group recognised an imputed
interest income on convertible notes receivables
of HK$50,086,000;

on 3 August 2012, the Group acquired 29.00%
interest in the issued share capital of China
Media and Films Holdings Limited (“China
Media”, stock code: 8172) at a consideration
of HK$51,324,000. At the end of the reporting
period, the directors performed an impairment
test for the Group’s investment in China Media
with reference to the market value of shares
in China Media on 31 December 2012 and
recognised an impairment loss in respect of an
associate of HK$6,137,000;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(d) at the end of the reporting period, the
directors also performed impairment tests
for the carrying amounts of management
services agreements held by the Group with
reference to the valuations performed by the
independent professional valuer and, in light
of the management services agreement with
Dore Entretenimento Sociedade Unipessoal
Limitada (“Dore”), a licensed gaming promoter
for Wynn Macau, terminated on 12 September
2012, an impairment loss on intangible assets
of HK$37,835,000 was recognised. In addition,
an impairment loss on intangible assets of
HK$383,000 was also recognised for the
remaining management services agreement held
by the Group in light of a keen competition in
Macau VIP gaming sector;

(e) the Group revalued its equity portfolio at market
prices at the end of the reporting period and
recognised a loss arising on change in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$5,169,000; and

(ff a wholly owned subsidiary of Spark Concept
Group Limited (“Spark Concept”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Spark Concept Group”),
an associate company of the Company engaged
in catering and trading, owed the Group an
amount of HK$7,393,000 at 31 December 2012.
In view of the net liabilities position of that
subsidiary of Spark Concept, an impairment loss
of HK$3,865,000 was recognised against the
amount due from an associate.

Administrative expenses (before amortisation and
depreciation) amounted to HK$23,512,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2012, a 9.31% increase from
HK$21,510,000 for the previous year. This increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in directors’
salaries and allowances, which was partly offset by
the decrease in legal and professional fees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEWE S

During the period from 3 August 2012, being the date
on which China Media became an associate company
of the Company, to 31 December 2012, China Media
and its subsidiaries reported a consolidated loss of
HK$6,647,000 and contributed a loss of HK$1,928,000
to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Spark
Concept Group reported a consolidated loss of
HK$3,229,000. As the Group’s share of post-
acquisition losses equals to its interests in Spark
Concept, the Group did not further recognise any
shares of losses.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations
through a combination of cash generated from
operations, equity attributable to owners of
the Company and issue of new shares. Equity
attributable to owners of the Company increased
from HK$1,237,636,000 at 31 December 2011 to
HK$1,521,954,000 at 31 December 2012.

At 31 December 2012, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$297,967,000 (2011:
HK$217,632,000).

At 31 December 2012, the Group had no borrowings
(2011: Nil).

Net current assets and current ratio
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$1,000,231,000

(2011: HK$408,063,000) and 13.61 (2011: 22.60),
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital structure

During the year, the capital structure of the Company

had the following changes:

(a)

on 9 May 2012, the capital of the Company was
reorganised involving (i) every 40 existing shares
of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of
the Company be consolidated into one share
of HK$0.40 (the “Consolidated Share”) (the
“Share Consolidation”); (ii) the total number
of the Consolidated Shares in the issued share
capital of the Company be rounded down to
a whole number by cancelling the fractional
Consolidated Share arising from the Share
Consolidation; (iii) the paid-up capital of each
Consolidated Share be reduced from HK$0.40
to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.39 (together
with (ii) above are hereinafter referred to as the
“Capital Reduction”) so as to form a new share
of HK$0.01; and (iv) the amount of credit arising
in the accounts of the Company from the Capital
Reduction be credited to the contributed surplus
account of the Company;

on 18 May 2012, the Company issued 39,670,000
new shares at a price of HK$0.32 per share by
way of placing of new shares under specific
mandate raising HK$12,338,000 (net of expenses)
for financing possible property investment project
of the Group and/or enhancing the Group’s
fixed income portfolio by subscribing high-yield
convertible notes;

on 20 December 2012, the Company issued
7,120,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.345 per
share pursuant to the exercise of share options
under the Company’s share option scheme; and
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THEHEWE S

on 28 December 2012, the Company issued
12,300,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.345
per share pursuant to the exercise of share
options under the Company’s share option
scheme.

Material acquisitions

During the year, the Group had the following material

acquisitions:

(@)

on 5 January 2012, the Group acquired the entire
issued shares in and the sale loan due by Hong
Kong Builders Finance Limited (“Hong Kong
Builders”) from Koffman Financial Group Limited
at a consideration of HK$33,069,172. Hong Kong
Builders is carrying on money lending business in
Hong Kong;

on 22 March 2012, the Group subscribed for
the convertible note in the principal amount
of HK$27,000,000 issued by Koffman. The
convertible note is unsecured, non-interest
March 2015.

Provided that the convertible note has not

bearing and maturing on 21
been redeemed, the whole convertible note
shall automatically be converted into shares
in Koffman upon the success of initial public
offering of Koffman’s shares at the price of initial
public offering. Any amount of the convertible
note which remains outstanding on the maturity
date shall be redeemed by Koffman at its then
outstanding principal amount plus a premium
calculated at 20% of the then outstanding
principal amount;

on 3 August 2012, the Group acquired
146,640,000 shares in China Media, representing
29.00% of the issued share capital of China
Media, from Culture Landmark at a consideration
of HK$51,324,000;
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(d) on 22 August 2012, the Group acquired two
three-storey New Territories Small Houses
located in Ma Yau Tong, Sai Kung, New
Territories, Hong Kong at a total consideration
of HK$21,438,000. These two three-storey New
Territories Small Houses are held by the Group
as long-term investments for rental purposes;
and

(e) on 27 November 2012, the Group exercised the
subscription rights attaching to the listed bonus
warrants (warrant code: 1056) issued by China
Star in the principal amount of HK$7,450,000
to subscribe for 35,990,338 new shares in
China Star at an adjusted subscription price of
HK$0.207 per share. The cash consideration for
the subscription amounted to HK$7,450,000.

Material disposals

During the year, the Group had the following material
disposals:

(@) on 27 April 2012, the Group disposed of its
residential property located in Tseung Kwan O,
New Territories, Hong Kong at a consideration of
HK$7,950,000;

(b) on 28 May 2012, Culture Landmark early
redeemed HK$23,000,000 of the convertible
notes of HK$75,000,000 held by the Group at
par;

(¢) on 3 August 2012, Culture Landmark early
redeemed the remaining balance of the
convertible notes of HK$52,000,000 held by the
Group at par; and
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(d)

on 20 November 2012, the Group as vendor
entered into a preliminary sale and purchase
agreement with Grand Reward Limited as
purchaser relating to the sale and purchase
of the whole of 1st floor and the flat roof, the
whole of 6th to 12th floors, roof, external walls,
two lavatories, three lorry parking spaces and
eight private car parking spaces on the ground
floor of an industrial building located in Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Kwun Tong
Property”) at a consideration of HK$586,000,000.
The proposed disposal of the Kwun Tong
Property was approved by the shareholders on 9
January 2013 and has not been completed as at
the date of this annual report.

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2012, no assets of the Group were

pledged.

Commitments

At 31 December 2012,

the Group had a total

commitments of HK$309,000,000 relating to:

(a)

the subscription of the second tranche of
convertible notes to be issued by China
Star in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$300,000,000 pursuant to the conditional
subscription agreement dated 21 January
2011. The subscription of the second tranche
of convertible notes is conditional upon the
fulfillment of the conditions precedent set out in
the conditional subscription agreement, among
other things, the availability of sufficient fund by
the Company. On 29 June 2012, the completion
date of subscription was extended from 30 June
2012 to 31 December 2013; and
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(b) six building mortgages in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$9,000,000 to be made to six
individuals pursuant to six building mortgages
entered into between Hong Kong Builders and
the six individuals in February 2012.

Exchange risk and hedging

During the year, the majority of the Group’s
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars. Accordingly, no financial
instruments for hedging purposes have been used by
the Group.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2012, the Group had a material
contingent liability relating to a claim brought by
China Finance & Assets Management Limited (“China
Finance”) in the High Court Action No. 526 of 2010
against Rexdale Investment Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, for failing to pay a service
fee in the sum of HK$25,000,000 to China Finance.

No provision for the claim brought by China Finance
was made in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 as
Lafe Corporation Limited has undertaken to indemnify
and keep indemnified the Group against any all
losses, claims, damages, penalties, actions, demands,
proceedings, judgment and costs arising from or in
connection with the claim.

Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2012, the headcount of the Group
was 13 (2011: 12). Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to HK$10,656,000 (2011: HK$5,517,000).
In addition to basic salaries, provident fund and
discretionary bonus, staff benefits include medical
scheme and share options.
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OPERATION REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no revenue
was generated from the Group’s film distribution
business as the Group was not able to secure quality
films at reasonable prices for distribution. In order
to revitalise the Group’s film distribution business,
the Group acquired a 29% interest in the issued
share capital of China Media from Culture Landmark
in August 2012. The Group’s film distribution
business has been waning over the last few years
with management having a difficult time finding and
sourcing quality films for distribution on commercially
viable terms and profitability for the Group. As one of
principal activities of China Media is film production,
the directors believe that taking an investment in
China Media enables the Group to (i) form a strategic
alliance with Culture Landmark and China Media
leveraging on each respective strengths; and (ii)
secure a stable supply of films from China Media for
distribution in Mainland China.

Hong Kong equities had a volatile year in 2012.
With the European Central Bank’s pledge to do
whatever it takes to save Euro in July 2012, followed
by the outright monetary transaction announced in
September 2012, and improving economic data from
Mainland China, Hong Kong equities have gained
more than 15% since bottoming in June 2012. During
the year, the Group did not make any investment
in equities, but sought opportunities to realise its
equities. In March 2012, the Group disposed of
certain equities and recorded a gain of HK$649,000.
During the year, the Group recorded a loss arising on
change in fair value of HK$5,169,000 for its equities.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B E B R AT

E 3 )

RBZE-—Z——F+-A=+-ALEE &
REEBEEUSBERNESEEY AR
7 MAEENEYRTLEBLEEEILE -
RESAEECEYRTER  AEEN-Z
——ENA AR SR EEERTR
K220% i  BEHE  HEEBH R
WELATZ2REALEEYERFBEELES
PR BITREERR  AEBEYRITE
BRE G - AAPEEE Hh—EXEE
BASYHE  WESHE  RENTEEE
SAEBEU()BESAZRE B LibE
ROBEEEET MR R ()REPEE
BrBEEY MU EREAERTES o

EBRTR-_Z——FREED - BEEEBMF
RBPITHRZZE—-FE+L ARBEIERRE T -
HER-_ZE-——FNAAGEEEERS B
MEFBEARKSBEHBEERRSE  SBRTE
—E-—HFXARREZBABIS% c FR
AEEREIB|IRERE  EYEKSERR
cHRIZIE-—ZFE=ZA AEEHEE TR
=, WS NEE649,000/87T - £ AEE
BEREZATFESBHESE ZFES5,169,000
BT ©

B8

y

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G 4%



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group’s provision of management
services business generated services fee income
amounted to HK$51,078,000, a 35.26% decrease as
compared to the previous year. This decrease not only
reflects the termination of the management services
agreement with Dore on 12 September 2012, but
also a keen competition in Macau VIP gaming sector
following the opening of Galaxy Macau in May 2011
and the first phase of Sands Cotai Central in April
2012, despite a 7.51% increase in Macau VIP gaming
revenue in 2012 as compared to the previous year.
Following the termination of the management services
agreement with Dore, the Group continues to provide
management services to the concierge department of
a licensed gaming promoter pursuant to the remaining
management services agreement held by it. Given that
the Group has expertise in provision of management
services available, the directors intended to explore
opportunities in providing management services to the
concierge departments of other gaming promoters in
Macau in order to revitalise the Group’s provision of
management services business. However, in view of
the keen competition in Macau VIP gaming sector, the
directors have determined to cease the exploration.
During the year, the Group recognised an impairment
loss on intangible assets of HK$38,218,000.

During the year, the Group’s property investment
business generated a rental income of HK$5,930,000.
In April 2012, the Group disposed of its residential
property located in Tseung Kwan O, New Territories,
Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$7,950,000 and
recorded a gain on disposal of investment property of
HK$640,000. In August 2012, the Group acquired two
three-storey New Territories Small Houses located
in Ma Yau Tong, Sai Kung, New Territories, Hong
Kong at a total consideration of HK$21,438,000.
These two three-storey New Territories Small Houses
are held by the Group as long-term investments for
rental purposes. All units of these two three-storey
New Territories Small Houses have been rented out
since the fourth quarter of 2012 at a monthly rental of
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HK$77,200. In October 2012, the Group disposed of
its car parking space located in Tseung Kwan O, New
Territories, Hong Kong by selling the entire issued
share capital of Dynamic Eagle Investments Limited at
a consideration of HK$686,000, which was determined
based on the net assets value of Dynamic Eagle
Investments Limited at 30 September 2012 adjusted
for the fair value of the car parking space on that
date, and recorded a gain on disposal of a subsidiary
of HK$441. In November 2012, the Group as
vendor entered into a preliminary sale and purchase
agreement with Grand Reward Limited as purchaser
relating to the sale and purchase of the Kwun Tong
Property at a consideration of HK$586,000,000. The
proposed disposal of the Kwun Tong Property was
approved by the shareholders on 9 January 2013. As
the proposed disposal has not yet been completed,
the Kwun Tong Property was reclassified as “assets
classified as held for sale” at 31 December 2012
for financial reporting purpose. It is expected that
the proposed disposal will be completed in the
second quarter of 2013. Despite the fact that the
consideration for disposing of the Kwun Tong Property
is reached at HK$586,000,000, the Kwun Tong
Property is revalued upwards to its market value of
HK$603,000,000 at 31 December 2012 in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 40 Investment
Property. Given that the carrying value of the Kwun
Tong Property of HK$603,000,000 at 31 December
2012 exceeds the consideration of HK$586,000,000
by HK$17,000,000, it is expected that the Group
will record a loss on disposal of the Kwun Tong
Property of HK$17,000,000 plus transaction costs to
be incurred upon completion. During the year, the
Group recognised a gain arising on change in fair
value of investment properties of HK$168,592,000, in
which HK$168,000,000 was related to the Kwun Tong
Property.
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With a view to diversify its revenue sources, the Group
expanded into money lending business by acquiring
the entire issued shares in and the sale loan due by
Hong Kong Builders, a Hong Kong company engaged
in money lending business, at a consideration
of HK$33,069,172. As the net fair value of the
identifiable assets of Hong Kong Builders exceeds
the fair value of the consideration paid by HK$32,000,
the Group recognised a gain on a bargain purchase
of HK$32,000. Hong Kong Builders generated interest
income on loans of HK$9,785,000 for the year. During
the year, Hong Kong Builders granted new loans in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$63,820,000
to customers and received loans repayments of
HK$32,005,000. In February 2012, Hong Kong Builders
entered into six building mortgages in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$9,000,000 with six individuals.
The drawdown of the building mortgages is expected
to be taken place in the second quarter of 2013.
At 31 December 2012, Hong Kong Builders’ loans
receivables together with accrued interest receivables
amounted to HK$60,753,000.

For the purpose of creating a fixed income portfolio,
the Group subscribed for the convertible notes of
HK$350,000,000 and HK$75,000,000 issued by China
Star and Culture Landmark respectively in 2011. In
March 2012, the Group subscribed for the convertible
note issued by Koffman in the principal amount of
HK$27,000,000 at its face value. The convertible note
issued by Koffman is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and maturing on 21 March 2015. According to the
terms of the convertible note issued by Koffman,
the whole convertible note shall automatically be
converted into shares in Koffman upon the success of
initial public offering of Koffman’s shares at the price
of initial public offering, provided that the convertible
note has not been redeemed. Any amount of the
convertible note which remains outstanding on the
maturity date shall be redeemed by Koffman at its
then outstanding principal amount plus a premium
calculated at 20% of the then outstanding principal
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amount. In May 2012, Culture Landmark early
redeemed HK$23,000,000 of the convertible notes of
HK$75,000,000 held by the Group at par. In August
2012, Culture Landmark early redeemed the remaining
balance of the convertible notes of HK$52,000,000 at
par. Accordingly, a loss arising on early redemption
of convertible notes receivables of HK$1,930,000
was recorded. At 31 December 2012, the face value
of the Group’s fixed income portfolio amounted to
HK$377,000,000, comprising the convertible notes
receivable from China Star of HK$350,000,000 and
the convertible note receivable from Koffman of
HK$27,000,000. During the year, the Group’s fixed
income portfolio generated imputed interest income
of HK$50,086,000 and a gain arising on change in fair
value of conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivables of HK$42,000.

In June 2012, the board of directors of China Star
proposed a conditional cash offer to repurchase
shares in China Star at an offer price of HK$0.35 per
share from its shareholders. Having regarded to the
improvements of business prospects and core profit
of China Star in the past few financial years, the
directors considered that the offer price of HK$0.35
per share in was well below the value of shares in
China Star. In addition, the directors believed that the
conditional cash offer, if materialised, would lead to
an enhancement of the net assets value and earnings
per share in China Star. As such, the directors have
determined to hold the shares in China Star for a
longer time and the Group gave various irrevocable
and unconditional undertakings to China Star for
not accepting the conditional cash offer in order to
facilitate the conditional cash offer.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B E B R AT

B B 7 ¥ B 3 #& < 87 %6 52,000,000 % T °
AEtEFESREENERITEREEEEZ
181,930,000t - R=—ZFE——-F+=-A
=t+t—HB FAEBEEEWEHEZATEA
377,000,000 T » BIEERKFEEZTREE
#%350,000,000 8 tREWSERZTRKRE
#% 27,000,000 T - TR AEBZEE W
AEEEEMEFR B WA S50,086,000% 5T
URERBERITEAREERAS 2 ZIREER
ZATFEEBATEL 2 W 42,0008 T ©

R-ZZE——FXA HFEEESSRZEHRHYT
BEEYN  UREYESROOISBETHER
REBEHHERY KLEZEFTEECZESAS
RBLGEFINBISEMBREFEZNEE &
EREEHNEESROOIGETEBRRFIEER
HEE -t EZHEERGELSEY
(HEBE)BRATHECEEFERERR
oAl EBEEREFETEERVERK
B BASECEFEEFEZERTRER
BREAETEMRESELN - URETHER
HIREEY -

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G 4%



Management Discussion and Analysis

Following the completion of the conditional cash offer,
the board of directors of China Star proposed the
bonus issue of shares and issue of bonus convertible
notes for the purpose of fulfilling the minimum public
float requirement in November 2012. At the request
of China Star, the Group had elected to receive the
bonus convertible notes in lieu of its entitlement to
the bonus shares under the bonus issue to ensure the
success of restoring public float by the bonus issue.
The bonus convertible notes carry rights entitling
the holders thereof to convert their principal amount
into new shares in China Star at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.01 per share (subject to adjustment).
Subject to the minimum public float requirements
of shares in China Star under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), holders of the bonus convertible
notes are entitled to exercise the conversion rights
attaching to the bonus convertible notes at any time
after their issue. The bonus convertible notes are
non-redeemable and non-interest bearing. Subject
to compliance with relevant laws, rules, regulations
and requirements in Hong Kong and Bermuda, the
bonus convertible notes have entitlement to (i) any
cash dividend or distribution of any kind or any
distribution of assets in specie paid or made by China
Star, (i) any capitalisation issue made by China Star
and (iii) any issue shares or other securities by way
of rights offered by China Star to its shareholders.
Please refer to the prospectus of China Star dated
12 December 2012 for more details of the terms of
the bonus convertible notes. As a result of electing
to receive the bonus convertible notes, the Group
received the bonus convertible notes in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$6,079,806.76, instead of
607,980,676 bonus shares in China Star. The bonus
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$6,079,806.76 were accounted for as available-for-
sale financial assets for financial reporting purpose.
Given that the adjusted subscription price of the
listed bonus warrants (warrant code: 1056) issued by
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China Star was well below the closing price of shares
in China Star on 26 November 2012 by 50.71%, the
Group exercised the subscription rights attaching
to the listed bonus warrants in the principal amount
of HK$7,450,000 to subscribe for 35,990,338 new
shares in China Star at the adjusted subscription
price of HK$0.207 per share. The cash consideration
for the subscription amounted to HK$7,450,000. At 31
December 2012, the Group held 303,990,338 shares
in China Star. During the year, the Group recognised
a net gain arising on revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets of HK$57,129,000 in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

In the first half of 2012, the Spark Concept Group
expanded their operations by opening a Japanese
noodle shop in Central District and a European
cuisine restaurant in Sheung Wan. The Spark Concept
Group now has four operating arms, which are a fine
dining restaurant, the European cuisine restaurant,
the Japanese noodle shop and a wine trading
company. Due to the rising in food and labour costs
and the pre-operating expenses incurred, the Spark
Concept Group reported a loss of HK$3,229,000 for
the year. As the Group’s share of post-acquisition
losses equals to its interests in Spark Concept Group
Limited, no further share of losses was recognised.
To finance the capital expenditures for opening
of the Japanese noodle shop and the European
cuisine restaurant, each of the shareholders of Spark
Concept made an interest-free advance to the Spark
Concept Group according to its shareholding interest.
In January 2012, the Group made a cash advance
of HK$5,390,000 to Advance Top Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Spark Concept. At 31 December
2012, Advance Top Limited owed the Group an
amount of HK$7,393,000, which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. In view of
the net liabilities position of Advance Top Limited,
an impairment loss of HK$3,865,000 was recognised
against the amount due from Advance Top Limited.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PROSPECTS

As the market grapples with the same issues that
have hung over it for several years now: the Eurozone
debt crisis, fragile state of economic recovery in the
United States and fears of a slowdown in Mainland
China, the outlook for 2013 remains uncertain and the
directors expect periods of volatility in 2013. However,
the directors recognise that an uncertainty outlook
can often coincide with a good opportunity to invest.
As such, the Group will continue to adopt a more
conservative investment approach toward its sale of
financial assets business for 2013.

Following the termination of the management services
agreement with Dore on 12 September 2012, the
Group continues to provide management services
to the concierge department of a licensed gaming
promoter pursuant to the remaining management
services agreement held by it. As the competition
in Macau VIP gaming sector is keen, the directors
expect a relatively stable performance for the Group’s
provision of management services business in 2013.

For enriching its property investment portfolio, the
Group acquired two three-storey New Territories
Small Houses in August 2012. All units of these two
three-storey New Territories Small Houses have been
rented out since the fourth quarter of 2012. According
to the terms of the proposed disposal, the Group
shall deliver vacant possession of the Kwun Tong
Property to Grand Reward Limited upon completion.
In January 2013, the Group served three-month
notices to the tenants of the Kwun Tong Property
for terminating the tenancies for the purpose of
completing the proposed disposal. Accordingly, the
rental income of the Group’s property investment
business will be deteriorated after the first quarter of
2013. Despite the introduction of new measures by
the Hong Kong Government and Hong Kong Monetary
Authority for stabilising property prices in February
2013, the directors remain optimistic about Hong
Kong properties as land is a scarce resource in Hong
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Kong and the land supply of Hong Kong is limited. As
such, the directors will cautiously seek opportunity
for investing other properties in order to enrich the
Group’s property investment portfolio and increase
the Group’s rental income.

Following the expansion into money lending business
in the first quarter of 2012, a number of merchants
and professionals have enquired the Group for
obtaining short-term financings. The directors
believe that there is a strong demand for short-term
financings in Hong Kong and have determined to
allocate more resources to expand the Group’s money
lending business in order to improve the Group’s
performance. Despite the determination for expanding
its money lending business, the Group will adopt
a cautious approach towards its assessment and
approval of loans in order to reduce its credit risk.

Given that the outlook for 2013 remains uncertain, the
Group will continue to cautiously monitor the business
environment and continue to strengthen its business
foundation by focusing on its the existing businesses
to protect the interests of its shareholders. In addition
to focusing on the Group’s existing businesses in
the next fiscal year, the directors will continue to
cautiously identify suitable investment opportunities
for the Group to diversify its businesses and broaden
its revenue.

Events after the Reporting Period
Subsequent to 31 December 2012 and up to the date

of this annual report, the Group had the following
material events:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

on 24 January 2013, the Company issued
47,000,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.645
per share by way of placing of new shares
under general mandate raising HK$29,860,000
(net of expenses) for property investment in
Hong Kong in order to enrich the Group’s
investment properties portfolio. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 14 January
2013 for more details;

on 18 February 2013, the Company proposed
to seek approvals from its shareholders for
(i) exercising the conversion rights attaching
to the bonus convertible notes issued by
China Star in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$6,079,806.76 to convert their principal
amount into 607,980,676 new shares in China
Star and (ii) granting a mandate to the Company
for disposing of the 303,990,338 shares in China
Star that already held by the Group and the
3,524,647,342 new shares in China Star to be
allotted and issued to the Group pursuant to the
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to
the bonus convertible notes and the convertible
notes issued by China Star in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$350,000,000. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18
February 2013 for more details;

on 8 March 2013, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with an individual. Pursuant to the
loan agreement, the Group has conditionally
agreed to grant an unsecured loan in the principal
amount of HK$80,000,000 to the individual. The
loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per
annum and maturing on the date falling on the
second anniversary from the date of drawdown.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 8 March 2013 for more details. The loan
has not been drawn as at the date of this annual
report;
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(d)

on 13 March 2013, the Board announced the
proposed issue of not less than 152,224,414
new shares and not more than 152,432,572 new
shares of the Company by way of open offer
to the qualifying shareholders for subscription
at a price of HK$1.20 per share on the basis
of one new share for every two existing shares
held on 5 April 2013. The net proceeds from
the open offer are estimated to be not less
than HK$180,020,000 but not more than
HK$180,270,000 and intended to be used for
financing the expansion of the loan portfolio of
the Group’s money lending business and/or the
potential subscription of the convertible bonds
to be issued by a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 13
March 2013 for more details; and

on 21 March 2013, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement with China AU Group
Holdings Limited (“China AU”, stock code: 8176).
Subject to the fulfillment of the conditions set
out in the subscription agreement, the Group has
agreed to subscribe for the convertible notes
in the principal amount of HK$40,000,000 to
be issued by China AU at their face value. The
convertible notes are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and maturing on the date falling on the
30 months from the date of their issue. The
convertible notes carry rights entitling the holders
thereof to convert their principal amount into
new shares in China AU at an initial conversion
price of HK$1.00 per share at any time prior to
the maturity date. On the same date, the Group
also entered into a loan agreement with China
AU. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Group
has conditionally agreed to grant an unsecured
loan in the principal amount of HK$40,000,000
to China AU. The loan is unsecured, interest
bearing at 5% per annum and maturing on the
date falling on the third anniversary from the date
of drawdown. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 21 March 2013 for more
details.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in line with the principles
of the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012)
(the “Code”) and the Corporate Governance Code
(effective from 1 April 2012) (the “Revised Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had
complied with the Code and the Revised Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, except
for:

(a) the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual;

(b) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws; and

(c) Mr. Ng Heung Yan, an independent non-executive
director of the Company, was not able to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 31 May 2012 due to another business
engagement.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties. The Board
periodically reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company
with a view to continuously improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices by assessing their
effectiveness with evolving standards to meet
changing circumstances and needs.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. All the members of the
Board have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure that the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of
the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
58 to 60.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other senior executives,
is delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the four committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Finance Committee, to assist
the Board in discharging its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s activities.

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai

Chairman and Chief Executive Office
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy

Non-executive director:
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan
Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Biographical details of the directors as at the date
of this report are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 54 to 57.

Save and except for Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan are brothers, there is no
relationship between members of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board
at all times met the requirements rules 3.10(1) and
(2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing not less than one-
third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.
No independent non-executive director has served the
Company for more than nine years.

The directors are fully insured under the directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policy for indemnification
against costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
that may be incurred by them in the execution and
discharge of their duties.

During the year, the Company organised one formal
training session conducted by Robertsons Solicitors
for the directors of the Company. The training session
covered topics included directors’ duties, continuing
obligations and guidelines of inside information
pursuant to Securities and Futures Ordinance. All
directors attended the training session.

A summary of training received by the directors since
1 April 2012 up to 31 December 2012 is as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Lei Hong Wai

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wabh, Billy

Attending training session
Attending training session
Attending training session
Non-executive director:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan Attending training session
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Wan Shing Chi

Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Attending training session
Attending training session
Attending training session

On 5 December 2012, the Chairman of the Board held
meeting with the non-executive directors, including
the independent non-executive directors, without the
presence of the executive directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year ended 31 December
2012, Mr. Lei Hong Wai has taken up the roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei possesses essential
leadership skills and has extensive experience in
corporate management and business development.
The Board is of the view that currently vesting
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer in the same person provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective and efficient business planning and decisions
as well as execution of long-term business strategies.
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TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The term of office for the non-
executive directors of the Company is subject to
retirement from office by rotation and is eligible for
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s bye-laws. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being, (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. As such, the Company considers
that such provision is sufficient to meet the underlying
objective of this code provision.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by
the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.
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ERERES

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Heung Yan and Mr. Wan Shing Chi and one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Ng Heung Yan
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and ensuring that
no director or any of his associates will involve in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, of
individual executive directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
policy, structure and packages for directors.
Recommendations regarding the remuneration
packages of executive directors were made by the
Remuneration Committee to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wan
Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the

Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen. Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy is the chairman
of the Finance Committee.

The Finance Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and approving banking facilities and
financial instruments to be granted or issued by the
Company for the Group’s needs and the provision
of corporate guarantees by the Company for its
subsidiaries and associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Wan Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to monitor the financial reporting process of the
Company and to review the Company’s financial
control, internal control and risk management
systems. It also governs the engagement of external
auditor and its performance. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with at least two meetings annually.
It also has separate meeting with the Company’s
external auditor at least once a year with the absence

of the management.
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BRELIRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continueqd)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit
Committee reviewed with the external auditor the
annual report for 2011, the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011, the interim report for 2012 and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2012 before their submission to the Board
for approval. It also reviewed the reports on internal
control system of the Group and discussed with the
management and the external auditor the accounting
policies and practices which might affect the Group
and financial reporting matters.

At the meeting held on 22 March 2012, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
external auditor at the annual general meeting in
2013.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance records of each director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out as below:

Annual Special
general general
meeting  meetings

ERELIHRSE

ERHELE

RBE-ZF-—-F+-A=1t—-HLFER
EESRALAZEERZHELEES W
T

Attended/Eligible to Attend
BEE/ AERLE
Remuner-
ation  Nomination Audit Finance
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
meetings ~ meetings meeting  meetings meeting

RRBF  RR%H EZg  gMzE REZE  EMEE  MBZEE
N g | ged ELE ] ELE ] ELE
Number of meetings R 1 4 42 2 1 2 0
Executive directors: yrES:
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 3 P 111 44 42042 20 11 NATEE NATER
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton EEE%4 17 4/4 4042 NATER NATER  NATER  NATER
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy — BEZs%s 111 414 M2 NATEE  NATER  NATER 0/0
Non-executive director: ~ ¥H7EZ:
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan REHEE 17 3/4 4042 NATER  NATER NATER  NARER
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE
directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi PRELE 11 44 40/42 202 1 22 NATER
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RECEE 01 4/4 40/42 212 11 22 NATER
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEREE 11 4/4 4042 NATER  NATER 212 0/0

Code provision A.6.7 requires that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors,
as equal board members, should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Mr. Ng Heung Yan, an
independent non-executive director of the Company,
was not able to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 31 May 2012 due to another
business engagement.
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ERELIRSE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 31 January 2005. He
is also an executive director of the Company. During
the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited to perform audit services
and non-audit services and incurred audit services
fees of HK$680,000 and non-audit services fees of
HK$472,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
internal control system and to ensure that a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained.
The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing
internal control policy while the responsibility of
day-to-day management of operational risks and
implementation of mitigation measures lies with
the management. As the internal control system is
designed to manage the Group’s risks within an
acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk
of failure, and to achieve the business objectives of
the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable
assurance but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information
and records or against financial losses or fraud.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control
system are as follows:

° segregation of duties and functions of the
respective operational departments of the Group;

o monitoring the strategic plan and performance;

° designing an effective accounting and information
system; and

° controlling inside information.

The Board has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the internal control manual when there
are changes to business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance as well as risk management. Besides
the Group has also engaged HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) to
conduct review and make recommendations for the
improvement and strengthening of the internal control
system.
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ERERES

INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The review by the Consultant is conducted with
reference to the principles outlined in Internal
Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The assessment covers the
major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as
risk management. Any material non-compliance or
failures in internal controls maintained by the Group’s
management and relevant recommendations for
improvements are reported to the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant,
the Audit Committee and the Board consider that the
key areas of the Group’s internal control system are
properly implemented.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a
year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the shareholders and
the Board. Shareholders are welcomed to raise
any query in relation to the Group’s businesses
at the general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board as well as chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Finance Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board Committee,
are available to answer questions at the general
meetings. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders can put forward any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at general meetings
of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The requisition must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s).

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3811, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong.

Fax: (852) 2369 0981

Email: billy@eternityinv.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.
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I—(_{ONSTI'I;LIJTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 19 March 2012, the Company adopted a new
set of bye-laws for the purpose of conforming with
amendments made to the Listing Rules and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The new set of the
Company’s bye-laws is available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 33 and 19 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 61.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011: Nil). No interim dividend was paid during the
year (2011: Nil).

A special dividend of HK$0.025 per share was paid
during the year ended 31 December 2011.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31
December 2012 is set out on page 215.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment and investment properties of the
Group are set out in notes 16 and 17 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2012.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves
of the Group and of the Company are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 66 and in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The Company’s reserves available for distribution

to shareholders at 31 December 2012 amounted to
HK$479,761,000 (2011: HK$407,731,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy

Non-executive director:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy and
Mr. Wan Shing Chi retire from the Board by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERFETHAERROREREZ
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE =

OPTIONS

At 31 December 2012, the interests of the directors R-BE——F+=—A=+—H8 ' #AQXFR
and chief executive of the Company and their EEAERHERHEISEEE 2 X RMmAsR
associates in the shares, underlying shares and B RBARABRBERARBELHBITAES
debentures of the Company and its associated ETESRZNWELETRIERA » XAFE
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained ERETETHAERBECHBALTREANT
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the REMEBEE 2R HEAROREEETHE
Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise BzERNT :

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as

follows:
Long positions wa
a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company a. ARFAEREEOIBIZEER
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
shares held Company
Name of director Note  Capacity BEzZE#1T HARNTE BT
ExpnE ez a6 ZERYE RAB D
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1 Held by controlled 70,472,000 27.37%
=Y e corporations
SZESAR 2 ES
Mr. Cheung Kwok 1 Held by controlled 70,472,000 27.37%
Wai, Elton corporations
REIESEE SZESAR 2 ERS
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1 Held by controlled 70,472,000 27.37%
SR Bl & S5 A corporations
SZESAR 2 ERS
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Beneficial owner 1,633,000 0.64%
PRIEZE B4 BERBEAA
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERFETHAERROREREZ
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE R (E)
OPTIONS (Continued)

Long positions (Continued) HaE(E)
b. Share options b. Bk
Number of Number of
share options underlying
Name of director Capacity held shares
EEpR g0 REZEREHE HERGHE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 933 933
FHERE EmBEAA
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Beneficial owner 2,349 2,349
PRfZEEEE BERBBEA
Note: et -
1. Twin Success International Limited is owned as to 1. Twin Success International Limited %
50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and as to Bl | Silver Pacific International Limited
50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited. Silver #%5 50% K Silver Pacific Development
Pacific International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Limited #E8 50% © Silver Pacific International
Lei Hong Wai. Silver Pacific Development Limited is Limited B X B XL EHHE ° Silver
owned as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton Pacific Development Limited% 5l H
and as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan. REBRLEEBSON R REEBLERES
50% e
Other than the holdings disclosed above, none of the BREYHIEEEREN R2EBE——F+=
directors, chief executive and their associates had any B=+—8 #EE2E . TEFBRAERFEE
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying ZHAE A AR D TS BRI AE L B 2 (A
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its BH s HERASEETESEAEZSH R
associated corporations at 31 December 2012. =
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTIONS BT 8

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme RNBERETEFBEHRGS B RRM T
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial 40 -

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the TREEBXRAAANRFAZIBREEE :

Company’s share options during the year:

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding
Outstanding Adjusted at 31
at 1 January for capital December
2012 Granted Exercised Lapsed reorganisation 2012
Share option RZE-ZE during during during (notg)  R-F-Z%
type -B-H the year the year the year REAELEE T-B=1-H
EREER HATE RERRH RERTTE RERXH (fiit) HATE
Directors and chief executive
ESRIEAHAR
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 2002 56,641 - - (56,641) - -
BHELE 2007B 37,324 - - - (36,391) 933
93,965 - - (56,641) (36,391) 933
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
REERLE 2011 79,300,000 - - (1,982,500)  (77,317,500) -
79,300,000 - - (1,982,500)  (77,317,500) -
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy 2004 56,641 - - - (55,225) 1,416
Rezts 20078 37,324 - - - (36,391) 933
2011 30,900,000 - - (772,500)  (30,127,500) -
2012 - 1,600,000 (1,600,000) - - -
30,993,965 1,600,000 (1,600,000) (772,500)  (30,219,116) 2,349
Total directors and chief executive
EES ST IN-Ch) 110,387,930 1,600,000 (1,600,000) (2,811,641)  (107,573,007) 3,282
Employees and consultants 2002 169,925 - - (169,925) - -
EERER 2004 212,119 - - - (265,316) 6,803
2007A 180,298 - - - (175,791) 4,507
20078 868,930 - - - (847,207) 21,728
2012 - 18,200,000 (17,820,000) - - 380,000
Total employees and consultants
EEREMAT 1,491,272 18,200,000 (17,820,000) (169,925) (1,288,314) 413,033
Total
Ch 111,879,202 19,800,000 (19,420,000) (2,981,566)  (108,861,321) 416,315
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Note: The exercise prices and number of outstanding share
options are adjusted for the capital reorganisation of the
Company that became effective on 9 May 2012.

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 4 June 2012, the date of grant of
the 2012 share options, was HK$0.345.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the dates on which the
share options were exercised was HK$0.507.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above,
at no time during the year was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

BRERT 8 ()

W HARTEBREZTEERMERNR =T —=
FHANBERZRAEAFEHAE -

RARABARDEE-ZF-—_-FXANA(=ZE
—ZFBRERLEBAH) A 2B HER0.345
BT e

RNT R0 BRZERETE B B < mEF
W H{EA0.5078 T o

BEROIESF 2ZH

BREXFIINE 2 BREZFRESN - RFAE
ISR - ANABHEAAATM B L B HE R B
NEABESREMLZY  BERNQRBDESTHE
BAXRDQAIEMEAMEABRE 2RO HES
R

EEREARGHNZER

RELIFREMEE - BEA QT HEEM
MEBARR Y MANAESHEENFENAH
BEEAER2EREHNMAER -

REALET LR FEREALRARENEM
ERBOEBEERITHRELN -
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

RZZB-—ZH+ZA=+t—8  ARFAREE
R BEFRGIFEIBHRFEZETERRELTH
BR TIHRREAREBADARACHITREZ

At 31 December 2012, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

shows that the following shareholders had notified FEEZASAAT

the Company of relevant interests in the issued share

capital of the Company.

Long positions e

a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company a. AAFEREEOLNIBIZ2EZER

Percentage of
Number of  the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the

50

shares held Company

Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity BEZBRfT ERAFERT

RREH Wiz e EERYA REESH

Twin Success International Limited 1 Beneficial owner 70,472,000 27.37%

BanfEA

Silver Pacific International Limited 1and 2 Held by controlled corporation 70,472,000 27.37%
182 EBEHRAzER

Silver Pacific Development Limited 1and 3 Held by controlled corporation 70,472,000 27.37%
183 EEBEHRAER

Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1and 2 Held by controlled corporations 70,472,000 27.37%
i3 182 XEBEHRAER

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton 1and 3 Held by controlled corporations 70,472,000 27.37%
REREE 183 SEHDRER

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1and 3 Held by controlled corporations 70,472,000 27.37%
REIEEE 183 SEHDAzER

Ms. Au Tsui Yee Maggie Beneficial owner 18,525,000 7.78%

BEEat BRAA

Asia Vest Partners VIl Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 32,373 9.95%
XEHAE ER

Asia Vest Partners X Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 32,373 9.95%
TRHNFZ RS

Asia Vest Partners Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 32,373 9.95%
TEHNFAZ RS

Mr. Andrew Nam Sherrill 4 Held by controlled corporations 32,373 9.95%

HERLLE

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B E B R AT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long positions (Continued)

b. Share options

Report of the Directors
EFERE

FERR(#E)
wR(E

b. BR#E

Number of Number of

share options underlying
Name of shareholder Capacity held shares
RERERE 5% BEZEREZE HERGEE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 933 933
TEBEEE EREBA
Notes: ior=3
1. Twin Success International Limited is owned as to 1. Twin Success International Limited %

50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and as to
50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited.

2. Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

3. Silver Pacific Development Limited is owned as to
50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton and as to 50%
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

4. The number of issued shares held was adjusted
for the capital reorganisations of the Company that
became effective on 2 May 2008, 23 April 2009 and
9 May 2012.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2012.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme

are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2012 —Z ——FF 5

B M Silver Pacific International Limited
#%5 50% K Silver Pacific Development
Limited #%8& 50% °

2. Silver Pacific International Limited HZ=

WEEEZEHESR -

3. Silver Pacific Development Limited 7z
AIRREEEEEES0% RIREI B 4%
B50% °

4. BACBTROBECHR-ZEZENEFR
BZR ZEEAFHRA=-+ZHR=ZE
—ZHEAANBERZEARARAEARE
HEAE -

BREXFKEESN A RRLBERIEN-F
——F+ A=t -HREEXRQFESHITRA
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RIRERGETE

AEEZERAENBFERNGSUBEER
BiEE41 o
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy for the employees of the
Group is set up by the directors of the Company on
the basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme is set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2012, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 74.01% (2011: 93.14%) and
83.72% (2011: 99.95%) of its turnover respectively.

In 2012, there was no supplier to the Group.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after
the reporting period are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as the auditor of the Company
for the subsequent year will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The consolidated
financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2011 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng. In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng was reorganised as HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. Save for the above, there has been no
other change in the auditor of the Company in any of
the preceding three years.

On Behalf of the Board

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Biographical Details of Directors
ESBEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 44, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning and
management of the Group. He has over ten years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was an
executive director of the Company during the period
from 28 September 2001 to 13 October 2005. He
was a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China, in
2002. He was the chairman and an executive director
of Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holding Limited (stock
code: 8130, now known as Zhi Cheng Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market operated by the Stock Exchange, during the
period from 10 July 2007 to 24 June 2009.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, aged 47, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 20
years of experience in the area of corporate finance
and securities industries. He holds a Master Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. Mr. Cheung was an
executive director of Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holding
Limited (stock code: 8130, now known as Zhi Cheng
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market operated by the Stock Exchange,
during the period from 27 August 2008 to 24 June
2009. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Mr. Cheung
Kwok Fan, the non-executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, aged 49, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 18 January
2010. Mr. Chan is responsible for the financial
management of the Group. He has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial control. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CPA member of CPA Australia and
a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of
Administration Degree from the University of Ottawa
in Canada and a Master of Commerce Degree in
Professional Accounting from the University of New
South Wales in Australia. He was an independent
non-executive director of Ching Hing (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 692, now known as China
Household Holdings Limited), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during the
period from 25 July 2007 to 2 July 2010. He was also
an independent non-executive director of Eternite
International Company Limited (stock code: 8351,
now known as Larry Jewelry International Company
Limited), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market operated by the Stock Exchange, during the
period from 21 September 2009 to 22 February 2011.
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Biographical Details of Directors
ESBEAR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, aged 45, has over 19 years’
working experience in the field of architecture. He is
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects, a
member of The Royal Australian Institute of Architects,
Registered Architect in Hong Kong and an Authorised
Person in the list of architects. He obtained his
Bachelor Degree of Arts in Architectural Studies from
The University of Hong Kong in 1989 and a Bachelor
Degree in Architectural from The University of Hong
Kong in 1991. He was selected as an awardee of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection organised
by Junior Chamber of International Hong Kong in
2005. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of
Eternite International Company Limited (stock code:
8351, now known as Larry Jewelry International
Company Limited), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market operated by the Stock Exchange,
during the period from 18 June 2009 to 16 December
2010. He is the younger brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai, Elton, an executive director of the Company. Mr.
Cheung was appointed as the non-executive director
of the Company on 31 August 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 42, has over 18 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member
of the Asia Institute of Building. Mr. Wan joined the
Company in May 2010.
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Ng Heung Yan, aged 42, has over 8 years of
experience in metal work engineering design and
currently works as a design manager in a private
engineering company in Hong Kong. He was
graduated from Monash University in Australia with
a Bachelor Degree of Engineering (Industrial and
Computing) in 1993. He was an independent non-
executive director of Eternite International Company
Limited (stock code: 8351, now know as Larry Jewelry
International Company Limited), a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market operated by the Stock
Exchange, during the period from 21 September 2009
to 22 February 2011. Mr. Ng joined the Company in
August 2011.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 48, is a fellow member
of both Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, as well as a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, financial management, mergers
and acquisitions gained from certain senior finance
related positions in an international accounting firm
in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong Kong and a
company listed in the United States of America. He is
currently the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong joined the Company in
November 2011.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
I ZHEN RS

B st o F oo AR A A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 214, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
I ZHEN RS

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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- _"'Consolidated Income Statement
Rekax

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

2012 2011
—E——F —_E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaE FET FET
Turnover EXER 7 67,442 79,174
Cost of sales SHER A - (14)
Gross profit EF 67,442 79,160
Investment and other income BERHEMUA 8 2,601 15,411
Other gains and losses HiawE R EE 9 163,131 (260,687)
Administrative expenses THEBX (23,752) (21,738)
Share of results of associates iy N 19 (1,928) =
Profit/(loss) from operations R R, (B518) 10 207,494 (187,854)
Finance costs mEE A - =
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREADREF (BE) 207,494 (187,854)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrEfH(Bx) KR 13 (1,236) 32,598
Profit/(loss) for the year REEBAN(BE) 206,258 (155,256)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: AR A EMEER () :

Owners of the Company P UNETE 2PN 206,259 (155,255)
Non-controlling interests TR ER (1) (1)
206,258 (155,256)

Earnings/(loss) per share BREF,(F8R) 14
(Restated)
(LE)
Basic =K HK92.38 cents Bl HK(174.22) cents 1L
Diluted #E HK92.34 cents 1l HK(174.22) cents &1l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of_é'dmprehensive Income
FEZEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 Bl Z —F——F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E——F —_E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Brat FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year REEBHN,(HE) 206,258 (155,2586)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEKE
for the year (after tax and (BRBEREEHSE
reclassification adjustments): FE)
Net gain/(loss) arising on EfAHEESREEEE
revaluation of available-for-sale ZWam(EE)F5E
financial assets 21 57,129 (44,780)
Total comprehensive income/ AEEHEEZEWE(FE)
(loss) for the year 263,387 (200,036)
Total comprehensive income/ UTALTEGBZEKE
(loss) attributable to: (EBH8]) :
Owners of the Company AKAREEA 263,388 (200,035)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (1) (1)
263,387 (200,036)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of BEMf 2 MizF B ARG S BHRR 2 — M

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeMBERXAE

At 31 December 2012 R=FBE——F+_-F=+—H

2012 2011
—g--—& -Z2——%
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Brat FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BERZE 16 301 630
Investment properties REWE 17 21,940 442,920
Intangible assets B EE 18 5,722 43,940
Interests in associates REEE QT 2 s 19 43,259 =
Convertible notes receivables AT R EE 20 323,160 289,857
Available-for-sale financial assets TA{#tHESREE 21 129,671 59,132
524,053 836,479
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables B ZEBIARN 22 41 4,844
Loans receivables e E X 23 60,753 -
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - ANREREAM
other receivables FEURFRIE 24 14,815 15,282
Amount due from an associate FE U B N BRI FRIE 25 3,528 2,003
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRRZ
through profit or loss EWMEE 26 25,199 47,038
Convertible notes receivables LI 20 - 64,872
Conversion options embedded in  EWARREERE 2
convertible notes receivables HiRIERE 27 74,256 75,282
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBEESEEY 28 297,967 217,632
476,559 426,953
Assets classified as held for sale 2D EAREHEZERE 29 603,000 =
Total assets EE#E 1,603,612 1,263,432
EQUITY I
Capital and reserves attributable 7~ T#EHE AEE
to owners of the Company B X%
Share capital [ &N 30 2,574 79,344
Reserves #1E 1,519,380 1,158,292
Equity attributable to owners KATEEAES
of the Company % 1,521,954 1,237,636
Non-controlling interests JEERER (2) (1)
Total equity R 1,521,952 1,237,635
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Consolidated Statement ofnl_:'ihancial Position

& MR &

At 31 December 2012 R=ZF——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
—g--% =-%—-%
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HraE FET FET
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals, deposit received and ExtER - 2liEe R
other payables Hibh e RIE 31 68,200 11,787
Trade deposits received EWESRE - 477
Rental deposits received [EAEisk R s 1,595 3,113
Tax payable FEAS B 18 9,533 3,513
79,328 18,890
Non-current liability FkRBEE
Deferred taxation IEZERL I8 32 2,332 6,907
Total liabilities =Rigik 81,660 25,797
Total equity and liabilities REREEHREE 1,603,612 1,263,432
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,000,231 408,063
Total assets less current EEAERRBAEE
liabilities 1,524,284 1,244,542

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

25 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: 2
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah, Billy
3 PR 2 2
Director Director
EFE EFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)
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~Statement of Financial Position

B E5 kA &

At 31 December 2012 R=FBE——F+_-F=+—H

2012 2011
—E-——F —_EB——HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
o2 FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN 33 820,056 793,784
Current asset REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEEY 28 7,339 18,876
Total assets EEH#E 827,395 812,660
EQUITY iR 4
Capital and reserves attributable 7~ F#H A EL
to owners of the Company B A % &
Share capital [N 30 2,574 79,344
Reserves fEE 34 731,693 640,623
Total equity R4 5 734,267 719,967
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals, deposit received EstER - SliEE R
and other payables Hibh S RIE 31 2,604 3,494
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET I B 2~ B RN IE 35 90,524 89,199
93,128 92,693
Total liabilities EEAE 93,128 92,693
Total equity and liabilities BEREEHAE 827,395 812,660
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (85,789) (73,817)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZBERABEE 734,267 719,967

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai

TR
Director

EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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FARFEDE

" For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE

ZEtZA=f—-HAULFE

e
Attributable to owners of the Company
KATERARE
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share-based assets Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed payment  revaluation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
AfikE
WREFA  SREE
BE  BAEE  EABR  REBR  XNEE  2EMRE  REEA Mt FERER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 1000 HK$ 000
7Ar 741 7Ar FAT 7T -2 -2 FA1 7Ar 741
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d)
da) (2D (W) (B
At 1 January 2011 N-E--%-f-R 11,021 482,493 19,844 534,959 12,158 - 204188 1,344,663 - 1,344,663
Loss for the year REERE = = = = = S (2 (155255) M (52
Other comprehensive income for the year REEER2ENA
Net loss arising on revalution of available-for-sale BT ECHERNEL Y
financial assets EESE - - - - - (44,780) - (44,780) - (44,780
Total comprehensive loss for the year REEAFEELE - - - - - (44780) (155,255 (200,039) (1) (200,036)
Placing of new shares REHRG 2203 215% - - - - - 29,738 = 29738
Release on lapse of share options EREXNEER - - - - (2310 - 2310 - - -
Share-based payment expenses WRAY AR 2% - - - - 1,300 - - 1,300 = 1,300
Share premium cancelation SERBE - (82499 - 9.297) - - 491,790 - - -
Open offer of new shares DERERRS 66,120 198359 = = - = - R4AT - 24T
Share issue expenses 53 - 4150) - - - - - (4150) - 4150)
Dividends peid rote 15 BHRAH1) = = - (1o = - - (1939 - (13
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 WoE--EZR=t-AR=E-2F-5-R 1934 21,744 19,844 327,303 11,148 (4a,780) 623,033 1,237,636 () 1,287,635
Profit for the year KERRH - - - - - - 206,259 206,259 (1) 206,258
Other comprehensive income for the year KEEEBEANA
Net gain aising on revaluation of avallable-for-sale ERTELECRERNEL,
financial assets W58 - - - - - 57,129 - 57,129 = 57129
Total comprehensive income for the year REERENAGE - - - - - 57,129 206,59 263,388 {) 263387
Capital reorganisation RrES (77,360) - - 77,360 - - - - - -
Placing of new shares RERG 3% 12,208 - - - - - 12,694 = 12,694
Share issue expenses BEZARE - (36) - - - - - (336) - (356)
Share-based payment expenses WRARS A 2B - - - - 1,892 - - 1892 - 1892
Release on lapse of share options BREXHEER - - - - (1,300 - 1,300 - - -
Exercise of share options fiBRE 19 8,362 - - (1,856) - - 6,700 - 6,700
At 31 December 2012 Ro8-zEt2pzt-A DT TR YV B YYR T o8 1M B0ER 1519 PIREAS)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FaREEBEH=R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

Notes:

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve represents the difference of share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the 880 shares issued by Riche (BVI) Limited
(formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to
the allotment of 120 shares to Classical Statue Limited and
the amount arising from issue of share by a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the net amount transferred
from share capital and share premium account to retained
profits/accumulated losses account pursuant to the special
resolutions passed at the special general meetings held on
22 August 2003, 30 April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange for
the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for
each reporting period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in the
share-based payment reserve account.

Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
represents accumulated gains and losses arising on the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of
amounts reclassified to the consolidated income statement
when those investments have been disposed of or are
determined to be impaired.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

68

2012 2011
—E——F —=E——4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETEH
Profit/(loss) before taxation R AT (EE) 207,494 (187,854)
Adjustments for: A
Amortisation of intangible assets £ & E#H - 2
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BMENRREBITE
and equipment 240 226
Dividend income IRE WA - (8,844)
Gain on a bargain purchase REBE W& (32) (52,837)
Gain on disposal of an HEREWE 2 WE
investment property (640) —
Gain arising on change in fair EWAREEERNSZ
value of conversion options HEEE 2 ATE
embedded in convertible BEEE 2 WG
notes receivables (42) (262)
Gain arising on change in fair REMFEZ AT ESE
value of investment properties EiE 2zl (168,592) (1,412)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HE&EMEBA T 2z - (422)
Loss arising on early redemption (EREEERATIRKREE
of convertible notes ZEE
receivables 1,930 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERSZEZ
plant and equipment = 302 -
Interest income on bank deposits $RITHERZF B WA (1,375) (5,820)
Imputed interest income on EWAREBRREZHE
convertible notes receivables FE U A (50,086) (18,478)
Impairment loss recognised in 2 e & A Bl FIR
respect of amount due from an WEEE
associate 3,865 —
Impairment loss recognised in SR E N RRESE
respect of an associate 6,137 —
Impairment loss recognised in CRABLEE
respect of intangible assets REEE 38,218 290,741
Impairment loss recognised in EEINE - BER
respect of property, plant and REREEE
equipment - 467
Loss arising on change in fair BRAFEFABRERZ
value of financial assets at fair TREEZATEZE
value through profit or loss EEZEE 5,169 42,772
Share of results of associates FEAL B 1\ B 3E 4R 1,928 —
Share-based payment expenses URGOERZH 22X 1,892 1,300
Written off of property, WM - BE KRR EME
plant and equipment - 118

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeBEeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Btat FET FET
Operating cash flows before EEESEPH 2 KE
movements in working capital Iﬁé}mi 46,408 59,697
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 EWERFUR 2 4,803 1,015
Increase in loans receivables B Uy 25 253 (27,148) —
Decrease in deposits, e ENREREM
prepayments and other FE W R IE R
receivables 1,336 1,291
Increase in amount due from an JE Wi Bt e A\ B SR IR G 0
associate (5,390) -
Decrease in financial assets at BAFEFABRZRZE
fair value through profit or loss R & 2R 10,710 —
Increase in accruals and other FESHE ARk H At A FRIE
payables 120 54,745 196
Decrease in rental deposits 2 SRS
received (1,518) —
Cash generated from operations BEEL RS 83,946 62,199
Tax (paid)/refund (Bf) REHE (39) 32
Net cash generated from RETHEE RS FE
operating activities 83,907 62,231
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Acquisition of available-for-sale WEAHEHESR
financial assets BE (7,450) (50,020)
Acquisition of convertible notes Wit B it T 3 R
receivables =g (27,000) (425,000)
Acquisition of financial asset at WEBR A EFTABREK
fair value through profit or loss ZERMEE - (80,392)
Dividend income IS ON - 8,844
Interest received 2 W F B 1,375 5,820
Interest received from convertible REEWITERRKREE 2B
notes receivables FE 32,868 =
Net cash outflow of acquisition of LISZE%H““* NAIZBEREF
an associate £ (51,324) —
Net cash outflow of acquisition ERBEMBATWEBEE
of assets and liabilities through REBEZRERE FHE
purchase of a subsidiary 37 - (6,500)
Net cash outflow of acquisition of WEHEB AR 2RERHE
subsidiaries FER 36 (33,064) (259,142)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) of HEMBARZEEARAN
disposal of subsidiaries OR i) 348 38 686 (1,490)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEZBRE
investment properties 7,950 -

Proceeds from disposal of

HEWXR - MERKRREZ

property, plant and equipment Fri8FIE 29 —
Proceeds from early redemption REBEODERITBRREEZ

of convertible notes receivables RS RIE 75,000 —
Purchase of intangible asset BEELEE - (50)

Purchase of investment properties EEREE (21,438) =
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BENRSZE

equipment (242) (2)
Net cash used in investing BRETBFACEESFE

activities (22,610) (807,932)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Htat FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds from issue BITHRMD 2 TS RIR
of new shares 19,038 290,067
Payment of promissory note SR NI ES
payable - (118,000)
Dividends paid to owners of the [EERPZAUNCIEZ= PN
Company ZBRE - (198,359)
Net cash generated from/ METEBEE, (A2
(used in) financing activities HERE 19,038 (26,292)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HEREELZEY
and cash equivalents ®win R FE 80,335 (771,993)
Cash and cash equivalents FIZRERRAE
at the beginning of year ZEY 217,632 989,625
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEESRRS
at the end of year £EY 297,967 217,632
Analysis of the balances of cash RERHELZEYETE
and cash equivalents il
Included in cash and cash FTAGZERBMRRKZ
equivalents per the RERAEEEY
consolidated statement of
financial position 28 297,967 217,632
The accompanying notes form an integral part of BEM 2 MIsE B A S BT 2 — I

these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ¥R TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —RER
The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as AR RARBREIMRLZERREE
an exempted company with limited liability and its RAG MESBRITROEEBHER
issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange SHEMRAR (B3R £ o

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the A\ 2 S R #h ik & Clarendon
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. HM 11, Bermuda °

The Company’s principal activity is investment RAARZEEXEBRAREZER  MEK
holding and the principal activities of its BARAIRBEARAZETEEKD AEHR
subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes REMBRRMEIIR19

33 and 19 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are REMBRRATBL(TFET)ZEN
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong BRATRERRBZEEN -

Dollars (HK$’000), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied,
for the first time, a number of new standards,
amendments and interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning 1 January 2012.

HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and
(Amendments) Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
(Amendments) Financial Assets

Except as described below, the adoption of the
new and revised HKFRSs has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior year and/or the
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures -
Transfers of Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets in the current year. The amendments
increase the disclosure requirements for
transactions involving the transfer of financial
assets in order to provide greater transparency
around risk exposures when financial assets are
transferred.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKFRS 7 will
affect the Group’s disclosures regarding transfers
of financial assets in the future.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
(Amendments) Comprehensive Income!

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits?
(Revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements?
(Revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
(Revised in 2011) Joint Ventures?

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
(Amendments) Financial Liabilities®

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) 2009-2011 Cycle?

HKFRS 1 Government Loan?
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
(Amendments) and Financial Liabilities?

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
(Amendments) and Transition Disclosures*

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
and HKFRS 12 Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests
(Amendments) in Other Entities: Transition Guidance?

HKFRS 10, HKFRS Investment Entities®
12 and HKAS 27

(Amendments)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities?
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described
below:

o All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in the
consolidated income statement. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified
to the consolidated income statement.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in the
consolidated income statement.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in
its entirety. Before this entire replacement, the
guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets continues to apply.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 after 1
January 2015.

The directors of the Company are in the
process of assessing the potential impact
of adopting HKFRS 9 but are not yet in a
position to determine whether HKFRS 9 will
have a significant impact on how the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are
described below:

° HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS
27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC)-Int 12
Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities
will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is
only one basis for consolidation, that is,
control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a
new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the
ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

° HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests
in Joint Ventures. HKFRS 11 deals with
how a joint arrangement of which two or
more parties have joint control should
be classified. HK (SIC) - Int 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified
as joint operations or joint ventures,
depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangements. In contrast,
under HKAS 31, there are three types
of joint arrangements: jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations. In addition, joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate consolidation.

° HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is
applicable to entities that have interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities.
In general, the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in
the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify
certain transitional guidance on the application of
these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the
amendments relating to the transitional guidance,
are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided all of these standards are
applied at the same time.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that
these five standards will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 January 2013.
The application of these five standards may
have significant impact on amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements. The
application of HKFRS 10 may result in the
Group no longer consolidating some of its
investees, and consolidating investees that were
not previously consolidated (e.g. the Group’s
investment in associates may become the
Group’s subsidiaries based on the new definition
of control and the related guidance in HKFRS
10). In addition, the application of HKFRS 11
may result in changes in the accounting of
the Group’s jointly controlled entities that are
currently accounted for using proportionate
consolidation. Under HKFRS 11, those jointly
controlled entities will be classified as a joint
operation or joint venture, depending on the
rights and obligations of the parties to the joint
arrangement.

The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the impact of these new HKFRSs but
it is expected that the overall impact of HKFRS
10 on the consolidated financial statements is
immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both
financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures
based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments
only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to
cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier
application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the new standard may affect
certain amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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3.

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities and the related disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset
of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous
realisation and settlement’.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to
disclose information about rights of offset and
related arrangements (such as collateral posting
requirements) for financial instruments under an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar
arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 and interim periods within those annual
periods. The disclosures should be provided
retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are
not effective until annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective
application required.

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKAS
32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more disclosures
being made with regard to offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities in the future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the
accounting for defined benefit plans and
termination benefits. The most significant
change relates to the accounting for changes
in defined benefit obligations and plan assets.
The amendments require the recognition of
changes in defined benefit obligations and in
fair value of plan assets when they occur, and
hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted
under the previous version of HKAS 19 and
accelerate the recognition of past service costs.
The amendments require all actuarial gains and
losses to be recognised immediately through
other comprehensive income in order for the
net pension asset or liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position to
reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermore, the interest cost and expected
return on plan assets used in the previous
version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a ‘net-
interest’ amount, which is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 and require retrospective application.
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NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Iltems
of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new
terminology for the statement of comprehensive
income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, a statement of
comprehensive income is renamed as
a statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and an income statement
is renamed as a statement of profit or loss. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. However,
the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of
other comprehensive income to be grouped
into two categories in the other comprehensive
income section: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same
basis. The amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.
The presentation of items of other comprehensive
income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting
periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011
Cycle issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 -
2011 Cycle include a number of amendments to
various HKFRSs. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include:

° amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment; and

o amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

Amendments to HKAS 16

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that
spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment should be classified as property, plant
and equipment when they meet the definition
of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16
and as inventory otherwise. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the amendments
to HKAS 16 will have a significant effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that
income tax on distributions to holders of an
equity instrument and transaction costs of an
equity transaction should be accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
the Group has already adopted this treatment.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the
above new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets. The preparation of consolidated
financial statements in conformity with the
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

The Group’s books and record are
maintained in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”)
as the directors of the Company control
and monitor the performance and financial
position of the Group in HKS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operation policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. The Group also assesses
existence of control where it does not have
more than 50% of voting power but is
able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances
where it does not have more than 50% of
the voting power but is able to govern the
financial and operating policies by virtue of
de-facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in the
consolidated income statement or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If this consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
the consolidated income statement where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition
profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=-F—=

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group determines at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to share of results of an associate
in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associates are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is carried at cost as established
at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policies above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=F

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the non-current asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as
a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary
are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell except for
investment properties which are measured
at fair value under HKAS 40 Investment
Property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—=—F—=

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from distribution of films is
recognised when video products or master
materials of films are delivered to customers
and the title has passed.

Revenue from sub-licensing of film rights is
recognised upon delivery of master materials
of films to customers.

Revenue from sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
when sale and purchase contracts become
unconditional.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance, from properties under operating
lease is recognised in consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the respective leases.

Service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Revenue arising from money lending is
recognised on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and
the effective interest rate applicable.

Revenue from properties held for sale is
recognised on the execution of a binding
sales agreement. Payments received from
the purchasers prior to this stage are
recorded as deposits received on sales of
properties and are grouped under current

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Interest income from financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the excepted life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income
statement.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in
the consolidated income statement because
of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continueqd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax liabilities or deferred tax assets for
investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised
in the consolidated income statement,
except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

1)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment has been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated
income statement in the reporting period
in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 33.3%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable
certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the
consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories
are determined on a first-in-first-out basis.
Net realised value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: financial
assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’
(FVTPL), ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial
assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The
classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as FVTPL

when the financial asset is either held for

trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for

trading if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset

held for trading may be designated as at

FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designated eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

(i) the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided

internally on that basis; or

(iiiy it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The net
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
income statement incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group
that are classified as AFS financial assets
and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, loans receivables, other
receivables, amount due from an associate,
convertible notes receivables and cash and
cash equivalents) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Convertible notes receivables held by the
Group are separately presented as debt and
embedded conversion option components.
On initial recognition, the debt component
represents the residual between the fair
value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the embedded conversion
option component. The debt component is
classified as loans and receivables and is
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 90 days,
as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

When an AFS financial asset is considered
to be impaired,
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement in the
period.

cumulative gains or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated income statement to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement are
not reversed through the consolidated
income statement. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. In respect
of AFS debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through
the consolidated income statement if an
increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own
equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in consolidated income
statement on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including accruals
and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis other than financial
liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that
is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they

when, and only when,
expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as

non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in

statement of financial position,

current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at
the amount of the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are
received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.

118 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k8 % E& 3% A R A7)

TESHTHREBRE#E)

() BHAGE)

EEBERAMBA (B)

HERBERXRBANEERI M
EEDE  AREEZBREENE
ERNE - BEMZANERES WS
RER  REERCEREERE
EiEE - AIEZBRTRIELAEE
Z—REERABRESR(RT
NERERER) RABEREEL
HERRAX -

REBENASUERENERRER
BAX BRESERGLELEETRE
RREEEECEREERN DS 2K
B - FEHNELE2IABAER
HELHBEEIAR/FEX

5] VEEHNBWNEERS
AEHREERINEE BEER
SUESREZRIABEESHAIMD -
BREZSERMICEEFTREAKRAE
EEFARBENZ 2KEER -

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the functional currency).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
that relate to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are represented in the
consolidated income statement within
‘investment and other income’ and ‘finance
costs’ respectively. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated income statement within
‘other gains and losses’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised
cost are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included
in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Group companies

(a)

assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end
of each reporting period;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising

on the acquisition of a foreign entity are

treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.

Exchange differences arising are recognised

in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Employee benefits

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% to 10%
of the employees’ relevant income, with the
employees’ contributions subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of
relevant income vests immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant
service period, while the remaining portion
vests in accordance with the MPF Scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave the
MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of
the share options and restricted share
awards is recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement.

The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined with reference
to the fair value of the share options and
restricted share awards granted. At the
end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimates of the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable and the number of restricted
share awards that become vested. It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position will be made
over the remaining vesting periods.

The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium accounts
when the share options are exercised and
when the restricted share awards are vested.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods
or services are measured at the fair values
of the goods or services received, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted.
The fair value received is recognised as
expenses immediately, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
Corresponding adjustment has been made
to equity (share-based payment reserve).

(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in

the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. A contingent asset is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn & MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related party transactions

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over
the Group; or

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others); or

(2) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member); or

(8) both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party; or

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a

third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZ=-ZX—=

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related party transactions (Continued)

(x)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(5) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the group or
an entity related to the Group; or

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i); or

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of intangible assets

Despite the fact that the services
agreements can be terminated by giving not
less than 12-month’s prior written notice to
the Group, the directors of the Company
determine the services agreements have
indefinite lives as they have no expiry date.

The Group performs annual tests on whether
there has been impairment of intangible
assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 4(h) to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. The
recoverable amounts of intangible assets
are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of
the business, pre-tax discount rates, and
other assumptions underlying the value-
in-use calculations. Information about
the assumptions and the risk factors on
impairment of intangible assets is stated
in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-
tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.

Estimate of fair value of investment
property

Investment property is stated at fair value
based on the market values, being the
estimated amount for which properties
could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction or the
valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the
valuer has based on method of valuation
which involves certain estimates and
assumptions. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised
their judgements and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Should there
be any changes in assumptions due to
change of market conditions, the fair value
of the investment property will be adjusted
accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Useful lives of property,
equipment

plant and

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded. The useful lives are estimated at
the time the assets are acquired based on
historical experience, the expected usage,
wear and tear of the assets, as well as
technical obsolescence arising from changes
in the market demands or service output of
the assets. The Group also performs annual
reviews on whether the assumptions made
on useful lives continue to be valid.

Trade and loans receivables

The aged debt profiles of trade debtors and
loans receivables are reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure that the trade debtor and
loans receivables balances are collectible
and follow up actions are promptly carried
out if the agreed credit periods or terms of
loans have been exceeded. However, from
time to time, the Group may experience
delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade debtor and loans receivables balances
is called into doubts, specific provisions
for impairments are made based on credit
status of the customers, the aged analysis
of the trade and loans receivables balances
and write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the
related receivables to the consolidated
Changes
collectibility of trade and loans receivables
for which provisions are not made could
affect our results of operations.

income statement. in the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

(9)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes
in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Valuation of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation techniques
that include inputs that are not based
on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial
instruments. Notes 19, 27 and 40 to
the consolidated financial statements
provide detailed information about the key
assumptions used in the determination of
the fair value of financial instruments, as
well as the detailed sensitivity analysis for
these assumptions.

The directors of the Company believe
that the chosen valuation techniques
and assumptions used are appropriate
in determining the fair value of financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group’s reportable segments have been
determined based on the information reported to
the Chairman of the Board, being chief operating
decision maker, that are used for performance
assessment and to make strategic decisions. The
Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of
their operations and the products and services
they provide. Each of the Group’s reportable
segments represents a strategic business unit
that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other reportable segments. The
Group currently has five reportable segments:

(i) Distribution Distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film rights

(i) Property Leasing of rental properties

investment

(iii) Sale of Sale of financial assets at
financial fair value through profit or
assets loss

(iv) Provision of Provision of management

management services to concierge
services departments of gaming
promoters appointed by

Macau casinos

(v) Money lending Money lending
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ—=—F—=

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment
results, assets, liabilities and other selected
financial information for the year ended 31
December 2012 and 2011 by operating segment
are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2012

fn 8 M35 R

Ft—A=+—HILFE

6. EEDIAE)

BE-Z—
= — ] 5

Tl

—ER-EB-——%1t=A

AEEREES I

DRASL|OMEE - EE - BERH

{ JEE =

i

BE-ZT—

Sale of

Property finan

BHEHIMUT :

“HE+ZA=t-HLEFE

Provision of
cial management Money

Distribution  investment assets services lending  Consolidated
#E Rt
7 WERE SMEE  EERR &8 &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$:000
77 77 71 77 77 7T
Revenue g
Revenue from external customers REHNEF b4 - 5,030 649 51,078 9,785 67,442
Results EL ]
Segment results for reportable segment  F2HAFzANEE - 5,930 649 51,078 9,785 67,442
Investment and other income RERAMHA 2,601
Administrative expenses fTHmx (23,792)
Finance costs HEER -
Share of results of associates NS | (1,928)
Profit before taxation BB ARR) 44,363
Income tax expense Franimx (1,236)
Core profit for the year REERDRA
(excluding major non-cash items) (TEETEFALER) a2
Major non-cash items TZEREER
— Gain arising on change in fair value of ~ — ERARKEEAS B g
conversion options embedded in BE/ATERDELY,
convertible notes receivables Wi 42
— Gain arising on change in fair value of ~ — RENEZATESHEL
investment properties it 168,592
— Gain on a bargain purchase - BEEE WA 3
— Impairment loss recognised in respect ~ — CEREREEADNERE
of amount due from an associate ] (3,869)
— Impairment loss recognised in respect  — CEABEATHESE
of an associate (6,137)
— Impairment loss recognised in respect  — CEZEVEEREEE
of intangible assets (38,218)
— Imputed interest income on convertible  — EUTRREE {58
notes receivables FISHA 50,086
— Loss arising on change in fair value of ~ — RAFEHAERR 2 £RE
financial assets at fair value through EZATREBELY
profit or loss E# (6,169)
— Loss arising on early redemption o — REEEEUTRRZEES
convertible notes receivables BB (1,930)
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and ~ — &Y% « BERREZES
equipment (302)
206,258
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 EZE —F——#F+=-H=+—HIFE

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Fina

For the year ended 31 December 2012

jallStatements

6. £E D (4)

BE-Z-—F+-A=+-HLFE

Sale of  Provision of
Property financial management Money
Distribution  investment assets services lending  Consolidated
EE Rt
3] NERE REE EERE &8 &8
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
F&r F&r FEr 77 77 FEr
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Assets (]
Segment assets for reportable segment  T2HAW2 AHEE
~ Hong Kong — &3 339 717,539 155,268 - 64,577 937,723
- Macau — B - - - 6,093 - 6,093
339 717,539 155,268 6,093 64,577 943,816
Unallocated corporate assets APEEEEE 659,796
Consolidated total assets LRERAE 1,603,612
Liabilities B
Segment liabilties for reportable segment ~ T2HAF2HBEE
— Hong Kong — &3 - (60,363) (5) - - (60,368)
— Macau — B - - - (2,321) - (2,321)
- (6036) 6 R3) - (62689
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEBEE (18,971)
Consolidated total liabilties Bl (61,660)
Sale of  Provision of
Property financial  management Money
Distribution investment assets services lending  Consolidated
HE Rt
& HERE SHEE EERH fé g4
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fén FEr FEr FET FEn Fén
Other segment information A7 HER
Depreciation and amortisation EREH
— reportable segment — 2§ - 17 218 - - 25
— unallocated expenses — RPREX 5
240
Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE(SRIAR
(other than financial instruments ELHEEERD)
and deferred tax assets) - 21,680 - - - 21,680

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 5K B BB R A A
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Notes to the Cd'ﬁ's-dl-'idated Financial Statements
FEMBEREME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEEH)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE_Z——F+-H=+—HLFE

Sale of  Provision of
Property financial  management Money
Distribution ~ investment assets services lending  Consolidated
HE et
B ESE SHEE ERRE &8 Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
71 Fér 77 71 71 71
Revenue Wi
Revenue from external customers REUNEF 2 UG - 281 - 78,893 - 79,174
Results L
Segment results for reportable segment  T2RAB2ABEE - 27 - 78,893 - 79,160
Investment and other income RERABUA 15,411
Administrative expenses T EB (21,739)
Finance costs HEER -
Share of results of associates NG S
Profit before taxation Sy 72,833
Income tax credit FraifEs 32,598
Core profit for the year REERLER
(excluding major non-cash items) (FREEEHRLEE) 105,431
Major non-cash items TEFRSER
— Gain arising on change in fair value ~ — EUTRREEAZ 2 HEE
of conversion options embedded in BRZATERDELY,
convertible notes receivables g 262
— Gain arising on change in fair value of ~ — RENEZATELHEEL
investment properties it 1412
— Gain on a bargain purchase - BEREZ WA 52,837
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — HEMBAR 2 k& 422
— Impairment loss recognised in respect ~ — CEHREVEEHESE
of intangible assets (290,741)
— Impairment loss recognised in respect ~ — CHERNE  BERREHE
of property, plant and equipment i (467)
— Imputed interest income on convertible  — EWTRREE 2 (EFIE
notes receivables WA 18,478
— Loss arising on change in fair value of ~ — RAFEHABRR 2 2RE
financial assets at fair value through ELLTEABRLCER
profit or loss (42,772)
— Written off of property, plant and — W% BER{EHE
equipment (118)
(155,256)
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‘Consolidated Financial Statements
FEeMBERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 B ZE —F——#F+_—-H=+—HIFFE
6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE_Z——+-A=+—HLEFE
Sale of  Provision of
Property financial  management Money
Distribution ~ investment assets services lending  Consolidated
#e R
B ESE LHEE ERMRE B8 Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FEr Fér Fér FAT FAT
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Assets (]
Segment assets for reportable segment  FIZHAB2AHEE
— Hong Kong — &k 411 446,219 124,419 - - 571,049
~ Macau —BA - - - 48,785 - 48,785
M 446,219 124,419 48,785 - 619,834
Unallocated corporate assets xIEEEEE 643,598
Consolidated total assets RREESE 1,263,432
Liabilities B
Segment liabilties for reportable segment  T2HAP2ABEE
~ Hong Kong — &% 618 (519 542) - - 6.314)
~ Macau i - - - 6.273) - 6279
618 (519 62 620 - 5
Unallocated corporate liabilities FAREEEE (14.210)
Consolidated total labilties RREREE (25,797)
Sale of  Provision of
Property financial  management Money
Distribution ~ investment assets services lending ~ Consolidated
HE 2t
B VED SHEE ERRH &8 b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
7 F&r F&r Fér T 7
Other segment information A HER
Depreciation and amortisation REREH
- reportable segment — 2§ - - 226 - - 226
— unallocated expenses — RAREX 2
228
Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE(SRIAR
(other than financial instruments ERREEERD)
and deferred tax assets) - 442,920 - - - 442,920

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 5K B BB R A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in the current
year (2011: Nil).

Segment results represent profit earned/(loss
incurred) by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses including
directors’ remuneration, share of results of
associates, investment and other income, other
gains and losses, finance costs and income tax
(expense)/credit. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable
segments other than interests in associates,
goodwill, convertible notes receivables,
conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivables and amount due from
an associate that are not attributable to
individual segments. Assets used jointly by
individual segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenues earned by individual
segments; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than current tax liabilities
and other financial liabilities that are
not attributable to individual segments.
Liabilities for which segments are jointly
liable are allocated in proportion to segment
assets.

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G F 5
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Notes to the Consolidated-F-ihanciaI Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDIE)
Geographical information i & & K
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and AEEFTZEREBRBMALE - X5H
Macau. The Group’s revenue from external RitBE S 2HIEFZRERERE
customers and information about its non-current FRBEEZERFENNOT :
assets by geographical location are detailed
below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REHMEF 2l ERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011

“B--f -%--F -B--f -B-—F
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET FET FET FET

Hong Kong &8 16,364 281 518,331 792,539
Macau R 51,078 78,893 5,722 43,940

67,442 79,174 524,053 836,479

Information about major customers ERETEEF2ER

Included in revenue arising from provision of RUEERKESE 251,078,000 8
management services of HK$51,078,000 (2011: (=& — — % :78,893,000/& 7t ) &
HK$78,893,000) are revenue of HK$49,913,000 FORRERAEERAES 2 RS
(2011: HK$73,743,000) which arose from services WAEE ZWEH 49,913,000 T (==
fee income received and receivable from the ——% 73,743,000 T) °

Group’s largest customer.
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Notes to the

_C:)"ﬁ's'bl-'idated Financial Statements
e M ¥R TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

7. TURNOVER 7. EEX

2012 2011
—E-——F —=F——4
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Sale of financial assets at fair value $HERAFESTABRZRZS
through profit or loss, net (note) REE - FREME) 649 —
Interest income on loans ERFBEWA 9,785 =
Rental income HEWA 5,930 281
Services fee income PR 7% & UL A 51,078 78,893
67,442 79,174

Note:

The turnover from sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recorded on a net
basis.

An analysis of the turnover from sale of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is as
follows:

Rt -

HERAFEFABERZEHEEZ
ERBDRFREETE -

HERQAFEFABERZEREEL

ERBEOMMOT -
2012 2011
—E--F —Z——-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT

Proceeds from sale of financial
assets at fair value through

HERAFESFARBRRZ
EREEZM

/8 Eh

SFIE

profit or loss 11,400 -

Cost of financial assets at fair value RAFETABHEERZ
through profit or loss EREE 2R (10,751) =
649 —
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8. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 8. BRERHEHMUKA

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Dividend income [3SC PN - 8,844
Gain on disposal of an investment HEREYEZINHE

property 640 —

Interest income on bank deposits RITERZIERA 1,375 5,820

Sundry income HIEWA 586 747

2,601 15,411
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ¥R TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

9. HthmREE

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Gain arising on change in fair value EWATREZERNE 2 RER
of conversion options embedded BRERATESBESE
in convertible notes receivables 2 W 42 262
Gain arising on change in fair value REYEZAFEESHEL 2
of investment properties Y & 168,592 1,412
Gain on a bargain purchase REBEZWE 32 52,837
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A Rz W am - 422
Impairment loss recognised in S EE N B N\ T 18
respect of amount due from HEERE
an associate (3,865) =
Impairment loss recognised in CHEREE QA BBERE
respect of an associate (6,137) —
Impairment loss recognised in CRABFLEERMERE
respect of intangible assets (38,218) (290,741)
Impairment loss recognised in CEIYE - BERZERE
respect of property, plant Eig
and equipment - (467)
Imputed interest income on FEWRARERRE ZHERR
convertible notes receivables A 50,086 18,478
Loss arising on change in fair value RAFEABRERZ
of financial assets at fair value TREEZATEZBES
through profit or loss BB (5,169) (42,772)
Loss arising on early redemption of EREEEWRAIBRKREE
convertible notes receivables EEZEE (1,930) —
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BRERSEZEZEBER
plant and equipment (302) —
Written off of property, plant M - BE KRR EME
and equipment - (118)
163,131 (260,687)
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Notes to the Consolidated ﬁh’éﬁbial Statements

fn & MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

10. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 10. BEHF (E1R)
Profit/(loss) from operations has been arrived KEBF(BER)DIKRTISEERSE
after charging: a5 3
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN & 680 680
Amortisation of intangible assets  EFEE#H - 2
Depreciation of property, M- BER
plant and equipment REITE 240 226
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment REZEER 302 =
Share-based payment expenses in BRI RIS LR B R
respect of consultancy services TRzHEX 1,284 —
Operating lease rentals in respect FHAEYEZLLHEHES
of rental premises 2,295 2,592
Staff costs including directors’ BT RA
remuneration (BREEMS)
— salaries and other allowances — #& R HAE8E 9,953 4,140
— contributions to retirement — ERAREFG EHER
benefits scheme 95 77
— share-based payment — URGOEAXF2lX
expenses 608 1,300
10,656 5,517
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fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable
to the directors of the Company during the year
was HK$8,805,000 (2011: HK$4,303,000). The
remuneration of each director for the years ended

11. ESEE

ERNENFAANEELHEMES
8,805,000 Tt (=& —— 4 : 4,303,000
BR) ME-B-—ER-FB——F&
toA=t-RLEE SEESLH

31 December 2012 and 2011 is as below: EHaD T :
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement Share-based
Fees other allowances benefit scheme payment expenses Total
Name of director ESfg ik HeRAfERE RABRGEMR  URBKAZAZEX @it

012 01 2012
292§ ZE--F Z9-2f
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FEL  FET  FEn

2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Z%--% Z%-IF ZB--F ZB-ZF “F--F “F-2f ZR--%
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000
Fér TEr  FEn  TEr  FEr  TET  TEn

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the chief FEREE(THER)

executive - - 3,650 930 14 1 - - 3,664 M
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton REELEWZa)

(note a) - - 3,650 920 14 10 - 936 3,664 1,866
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Resrt - = 830 720 14 12 153 364 997 1,006
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan (note b) ~ REIBEE(HZb) 120 40 - - - - - - 120 40
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert BEMEE W)

(note c) - 80 - - - - - - - 80
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FHELE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Hung Hing Man (note d) AEREE(Hita) - 102 - = - = - = - 102
Mr. Ng Heung Yan (note b) RECEEMED) 120 40 - = - = - = 120 40
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen (notee) ~ ERBREE(HHe) 120 18 - = - = - = 120 18
Total emoluments Heam 480 400 8,130 2,570 42 83 153 1,300 8,805 4,303

None of the directors of the Company has waived
any emoluments during the year.

Notes:

(a) Appointed on 1 February 2011.
(b)  Appointed on 31 August 2011.
(c) Resigned on 31 August 2011.
(d) Resigned on 7 November 2011.
(e) Appointed on 7 November 2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Fina
FeMBERERME

ﬁ'bial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, three (2011:
three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
The emoluments of the remaining two (2011: two)
individuals were as follows:

12. EEB £

REAEELERSFMALTEF = A
(ZEB——F  ZAN)BERQATZES
HECHEREEMBHRRMET11E
BEoBMTMA(ZE——F  MA)ZHM
£WT :

2012 2011

—E-C—F —E——F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and other allowances e R H MR, 800 730
Contributions to retirement benefits 3B {R3EFIEt &)tk

scheme 28 24

Share-based payment expenses URGEX X 2X 455 —

1,283 754

Their emoluments were within the following
bands:

BE2MENFUTEE :

Number of employees

EBEAH
2012 2011
—g--—f —T——f&
Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 2 2

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000

1,000,001 # st £ 1,500,000 % 7T - —
1,500,001 % T £ 2,000,000 % 7T - —
2,000,001 & T £ 2,500,000 & 7T - —
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fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

13. INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

Income tax recognised in the consolidated

income statement:

13. FiBH(BAR) %

REEWBERBERZEH

2012 2011

e e

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current tax expense AHARIERE (5,811) (2,283)
Deferred taxation (note 32) IEFERLIE (B2F 32) 4,575 34,881
(1,236) 32,598

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.

No provision for Macao Complementary Profits
Tax has been made for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: Nil) as the Group has no

estimated assessable profits.

The income tax (expense)/credit for the years
can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before

MEFE2EBNEB R ERBE
MZ16.5%TE

HRAEEMEMATERREF - 8EH
E-E-—F+-BA=+—-HLEEW
ERRFAEERNESHELBE (=22 ——
F ) o

AEERSHFAX) MR TEFS I
BERAZBRBAER (BB YR

taxation per the consolidated income statement T
as follows:
2012 2011
—BE-CF —EB—-F
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
FHET =54 FET BAk
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBLADRA(B51R) 207,494 (187,854)
Taxation at income tax rate of BRETBHi=16.5%
16.5% (2011:16.5%) (ZE——F : 16.5%)
TEZ SR (34,237) (16.5) 30,996 (16.5)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEZREZENE
subsidiaries operating in other AR TEARE2HE
jurisdictions (1,720) 0.8)  (13,084) 7.0
Tax effect of income that is not AEEERB AR
taxable in determining taxable FHBA BB E
profits 40,097 19.3 18,301 9.7)
Tax effect of expenses that are not  fE & B2 B 70 F o]
deductible in determining taxable — HF X HzHKEHE
profits (8,750) (4.2)  (36,834) 19.6
Utilisation of tax losses previously — EIf R R AERARBER
not recognised 120 0.1 4 (0.1)
Tax losses not yet recognised AERRBEE (1,321) (0.6) (1,666) 0.9
Deferred tax credit EEHEER S 4,575 2.2 34,881 (18.6)
Income tax (expense)/credit AEEMEH(EX) B
for the year (1,236) (0.5) 32,598 (17.4)
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Notes to the Consolidated F_fhﬁﬁ'éial Statements

FeMBGRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE
14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/
(loss) per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

BREFN(BE)

RARFEEAREEREARBERF
/(BB TIRE T MBI E

2012 2011
—E-——F —=F——4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Profit/(loss) for the year RATHEE AEER
attributable to owners of the FERA(BE)
Company 206,259 (155,255)
2012 2011
—E——F —_E——F
’000 ’000
TR TR
(Restated)
(E%)
Number of ordinary shares EREREE
Weighted average number of RIAEERERRR(EHE)
ordinary shares for the purpose BTAzEBRMETEH
of basic earnings/(loss) per share 223,278 89,113
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary #EEETZER 2L
shares:
Share options BB A 83 =
Weighted average number of RETEESREERR(F5E)
ordinary shares for the purpose of  BEFr 2 @R MEFEHH
diluted earnings/(loss) per share 223,361 89,113

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=F

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of calculating basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share for both years have
been adjusted for the capital reorganisation in
May 2012.
number of ordinary shares for the purposes of

In addition, the weighted average
calculating basic and diluted loss per share for
the year ended 31 December 2011 has been
adjusted for the open offer of the Company’s
new ordinary shares in August 2011.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2011 was the same as the basic loss
per share as the Company’s outstanding share
options were anti-dilutive or had no dilutive
effect.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

A special dividend of HK$0.025 per share was
paid during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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15.

fn 8 M35 R

e S = —HIFE

BERERN,(FE)#)

RAEMBEFEZESREARBERR
SBB)BEFTACEBRMEFOH
B BERR-ZE-—-FRAZRAEA
ELRAE - I BEZZE——F+=
A=1+—HALFE RFESRELRR
BEEENMTACEERMEFLIIH
B o ERR=-FE——FNAAHBER
NAHEBRELAE -

BHRA DR F 2 RAT R RAER R EE
AT E#BELE BEBE-FT——F
tT-RA=T-BLFEZEREEER
HERESEIEMERE -

iz 2

ARAREBAEFRBREBE=F

F+Z A=+ -BLFEZEMRAR
B(ZE——F 1 8)o

REBE-ZE——F+=-A=1+—HIL#E
B BIREESHIRESR0.0258 T °
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Notes to t i—:faiﬁlidated Fina
RAMBmERME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B ZE —F——#F+_—-H=+—HIFFE

jallStatements

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - BMERZE
The Group xEH
Leasehold Office Motor Furniture
improvements equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
RENEEE WAERME RE GhREE a5

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Cost A
At 1 January 2011 R=%--£-5-8 2,746 186 2,150 1,003 6,175
Additions during the year ERFE - 2 - - 2
Derecognised on disposal HERBARRR LR

of subsidiaries (note 38) (Hi38) - 2 - - @)
Written off s (365) (18) - - (383)
At 31 December 2011 and RZB--5+ZB=1-0K

1 January 2012 “&-2%-5-H 2,381 168 2,150 1,093 5792
Additions during the year ERifE 169 73 - - 242
Disposal HE — (25) (1,100) - (1,125)
At 31 December 2012 R=%-ZFtZB=t-H 2,550 216 1,050 1,003 4,909
Accumulated depreciation and RiERAE

impairment
At 1 January 2011 R=8--%-A-8 2,425 100 1,341 868 4,734
Charged for the year AEEER - 17 209 - 226
Impairment losses recognised ERAANEER 212 30 - 225 467
Written off s (256) ) - - (265)
At 31 December 2011 and R=B--F+ZB=1-BR

1 January 2012 ~2-2%-8-H 2,381 138 1,550 1,093 5,162
Charged for the year AEEER 14 17 209 - 240
Written back on disposal HEZER - (14) (780) - (794)
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Z%+ZB=1-8 2,395 141 979 1,003 4,608
Carrying amounts RERE
At 31 December 2012 R=8-ZFtZB=t-H 155 75 1 - 301
At 31 December 2011 RZB--5+-B=1-H - 30 600 - 630
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 D

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

fn 8 M35 R

ecember 2012 B2 —_FE— &+ _H=+—HIFE

17. REWE

The Group AEE
HK$’000
FET
Fair value: AEE :
At 1 January 2011 R=—ZE——F—HF—H =
Acquisition of assets through purchase of a ERBEEMBAGIWEEE
subsidiary (notes b and 37) (HiFb R 37) 6,508
Acquisition of subsidiaries (notes ¢ and 36) WEE M A Bl (B7at c K 36) 435,000
Increase in fair value recognised SR ATEZEM 1,412
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 R-E——F+=-A=+—HK
—E-Zf—-HF—H 442,920
Addition (note e) wE (fite) 21,438
Disposal (note d) HE (M d) (7,310)
Disposal of a subsidiary (notes f and 38) HEME QR (MR 38) (700)
Increase in fair value recognised SRR AFEZIE M
(notes e, f and g) (Btite fRg) 168,592
Reclassified as asset held for sale BN EAKFEHEZERE
(notes g and 29) (Mt gk 29) (603,000)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——-F+=-A=+—H 21,940

Notes:

(@) The Group’s investment properties are located in
Hong Kong and held under medium term lease.

(b) On 26 October 2011, the Group acquired the entire
issued share capital of Dynamic Eagle Investments
Limited (“Dynamic Eagle”) from an independent
third party at a cash consideration of HK$6,500,000.
The principal assets of Dynamic Eagle are two
investment properties located in Tseung Kwan O,
New Territories. The consideration of HK$6,500,000
was considered to be the fair value of the investment
properties at the time of acquisition.

(c) On 23 December 2011, the Group acquired the
entire issued share capital of Adelio Holdings Limited
(“Adelio”) from an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$262,022,000. The principal
subsidiary of Adelio is Rexdale Investment Limited
(“Rexdale”), which is engaged in the business of
property holding in Hong Kong. The fair value of
the investment properties located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon held by Rexdale was HK$435,000,000 at
the time of acquisition.
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(@) AEEZREMEMANER  LREHH
HEREH -

(b)) R=Z2——F+A=+7H XEHU
3 £ X 186,500,000 T E — B E L H
= 7 W B Dynamic Eagle Investments
Limited ([ Dynamic Eaglel) 2 2 # &
Z% 1T IR 7N o Dynamic EagleZ T E& &
RMEBNRFAGER 2 REYE - KB
6,500,000 B T AKIBRERAZERE
MEZNFHE -

(c) A—E——F+-HA=+=H0 ' Fx5H
LU £ K {8262,022,0005% Tt 6 — & B
3 55 = 7 W B Adelio Holdings Limited
(TAdelio]) 2 & I E 8 17 IR 7 ° Adelio
2 EE B A 7 & Rexdale Investment
Limited ([Rexdale|) » E{tEM R E B
2 EZBET cRexdaleF B R L
EBBECRENMEZLATERKERS
435,000,000 8T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB % EIEEER AT

On 27 April 2012, Dynamic Eagle disposed
of an investment property with a fair value of
HK$7,310,000 to an independent third party at a
cash consideration of HK$7,950,000.

On 22 August 2012, the Group acquired two
investment properties located in Ma Yau Tong, Sai
Kung, New Territories from two independent third
parties, who are brothers, at a cash consideration
of HK$10,719,000 for each of the two investment
properties. The consideration paid by the Group was
considered to be the fair value of the investment
properties at the time of acquisition. At 31 December
2012, the fair value of the investment properties
was HK$21,940,000 and a gain arising on change
in fair value of HK$502,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement during the year.

On 16 October 2012, the Group disposed of the
remaining investment property held by Dynamic
Eagle by selling the entire issued share capital
of Dynamic Eagle to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of HK$686,000, which
was determined based on the net assets value of
Dynamic Eagle at 30 September 2012 adjusted for
the fair value of the investment property on that
date. The principal asset of Dynamic Eagle is the
investment property with a fair value of HK$700,000
at 30 September 2012. Accordingly, a gain arising on
change in fair value of HK$90,000 was recognised in
the consolidated income statement during the year.

On 20 November 2012, Rexdale entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party relating to the disposal of
the investment properties located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon at a cash consideration of HK$586,000,000.
At 31 December 2012, the disposal has not been
completed and the investment properties held
by Rexdale were reclassified as assets classified
as held for sale in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The fair value of the
investment properties at 31 December 2012 was
HK$603,000,000 and a gain arising on change in
fair value of HK$168,000,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement during the year. The
disposal of the investment properties is expected to
be completed within the next 12 months.

el

17. BEWE (&)

Bt - ()

(d)

R=-ZZ——FWA=++tH  Dynamic
Eagle ) % 1£ 187,950,000 3 7 [ — %
BYS=HHE—IEAF{ES7,310,000
BITZBREWE -

R-ZE——FN\B=+=H AEEUR
EREHMEREYWES 10,719,000 8
TEMEBLE=F(RELTHE)NKE
MEVMRFAAEEREZREDE -
AEBSZF2REBEWHELZSREDE
RBRBEHEZAFE - RZE—Z—F+=
BA=+—HB ZEREVEZLATFES
21,940,000 T FALAFEEBHEEZ
%5 502,000 78 T IR ER S NS R IER ©

RZZBE—Z—F+HA+x8 NE@MEBU
HERE686,000 T(RENR-FT—=
% 1L A =+ HDynamic Eagle 2 & & F
BEEE WRZABRENEZLAFET
DAHAEE) @ — BB % = 5 & Dynamic
Eaglex 2 BE BITR A U HE
Dynamic EagleiEF B Z8ATREME - K
—Z—_FAH=1+H - Dynamic Eagle
ZEBEEAAFESRT700,0008 T2
EYE-Elt FALAFEEZBEEZNK
# 90,0008 T IR GFE A RER ©

MNRZZE—Z-%+—H =+ H  Rexdale
H-ZRUF=AILREEEHE
AR B BB £ K 1E586,000,0005% T
HEMNRNEBEZRENE - R=F
——F+ZA=1+—H HEFEERX
SR MRexdalelFE B 22 EREYMHE
REAHBRREAEEH - ELDE
BREHECEE - RZE—ZF+=
B=1+—B ZSREVECZAFES
603,000,000 T FRAFEEEESE
Z W3 168,000,0008 T IR E R E K
BR - FEHEEREMESNARI12MEA
AR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(h)

The Group’s investment properties, including the
investment properties reclassified as assets held for
sale, at 31 December 2012 are stated at fair value
which has been arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out on that date by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited (“Peak Vision”) and Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited (“Grant Sherman”). Each of Peak Vision and
Grant Sherman is a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers with no connection with the
Group. Peak Vision and Grant Sherman are members
of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”)
and have appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations. The valuations, which conform
to HKIS Valuation Standards on properties, were
arrived by reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties and the
current rents passing and the reversionary income
potential of tenancies.
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17. BEWE (&)

BiaE - (4&)

(h)
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RZEBE——F+=ZA=+—H ' x&E@EZ
REVEERRBREFIBEASEHEZE
E2RENE)DRAFEIER AFE
DiREHTAERAT(RE ) RPEHET
EERATPENRERETZMAEE
HEESH - BERIPESEHEBILESER
HEMz AT EAEEMERE - RE
RhEAEBAIEMBS((FBUEME
gKE  WAHBBEME 2 EUWEMLE
FHEECEESREHER - HEFE
EREMBE 2 YEABEEN(ZSE
AFEE—IR) WESZEBEEUNEZ
FHRAREBZHHEER  UREAHAER
BEHEBTESKAMBEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=-F—=

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Fr—A=+—HIEFE

18. BV EE

The Group rEH
Services
agreements Trademark Total
PR 7 1% & EmE st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2011 456,857 — 456,857
Additions during the year ERNRE — 50 50
Derecognised on disposal HEM B A RRA L
of subsidiaries (note 38) W®R(KE38) - (50) (50)
At 31 December 2011, R=ZB——F
1 January 2012 and +=A=+—8 -
31 December 2012 —2-——-%-F—H
E-——_+=-B=+ 456,857 - 456,857
Accumulated amortisation R ##EEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2011 R-ZE——F—H—H 122,176 — 122,176
Amortisation during the year —~ FR#H - 2 2
Eliminated on disposal HENEB D BRI
of subsidiaries (note 38) (Bt 38) — 2) (2)
Impairment loss recognised ERRRAEEE 290,741 = 290,741
At 31 December 2011 and R=Z——F
1 January 2012 tT=ZA=+—HK
—_E-—_F—H—H 412,917 — 412,917
Impairment loss recognised ERZHESE 38,218 — 38,218
At 31 December 2012 R-EBE——F
+=A=+—8 451,135 - 451,135
Carrying amounts AREE
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F
+=A=+—H 5,722 - 5,722
At 31 December 2011 R=ZF——%F
+=—B=+—H 43,940 — 43,940
Notes: Kz

Services agreements represent the carrying amounts
of services agreements held by Rich Daily Group
Limited (“Rich Daily”), a management services
provider to the concierge departments of gaming
promoters in Macau. The services agreements have
indefinite useful lives and no amortisation has been
made.

At the end of the year, the directors of the Company
performed impairment tests for the carrying amounts
of services agreements held by Rich Daily with
reference to the valuations performed by Grant
Sherman. In light of one of the services agreements
terminated on 12 September 2012, an impairment
loss of HK$37,835,000 was recognised. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 12
September 2011 for the details of the termination. In
addition, an impairment loss of HK$383,000 was also
recognised for the remaining management services
agreement held by Rich Daily in light of a keen

competition in Macau VIP gaming sector.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

BR 7% 1% 3% 18 Rich Daily Group Limited
(I'Rlch Daily|) ' HREFEERNAZE

BBz ERREUEFTAFEEREHREZ
BEEE - BEHEBRER TERER -
TNEAE e -

RNERK  KARESSEPREMET
Z {518 » FhRich Daily &8 R = 2 R
HEEETRERNE - BREP — 5 R&E T
ROR-ZE——FAA+T-HKL W2
T 2 {8 5 8 37,835,000 78 JT o & 1E 5
BESHEAA 77?‘—§——¢le +=H
Ho o e BERRPASEBLERTH
Z 0 RABIRH Rich Daily%ﬁiﬁ%?%
12 BR 75 1 s R SRR (B 5 18 383,000 58 7T ©
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The carrying amount of the remaining services
agreement was tested for impairment by reference to
value-in-use calculation. A discount rate of 19.66%
per annum (2011: 22.88%) was applied in the value-
in-use model which uses cash flow projections based
on financial forecasts approved by the directors of
the Company covering a five-year period. There are
a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of the cash flow projections for the
period covered by the forecast. Key assumptions
include gross margin and growth rate which are
determined by the management of the Group based
on its expectation for market development. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the industry.

Trademark represents the rights to use trade names
and proprietary marks pursuant to the master
franchise agreement dated 6 July 2011 entered into
between Advance Top Limited (“Advance Top”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Advance Top
Group”), a then wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and a Japanese corporation. The useful
life of the rights to use is 10 years and amortisation
has been made. On 15 December 2011, the
trademark was derecognised upon the disposal of
Advance Top (note 38).

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

fn 8 M35 R

Ft—_A=F—HIULFE

18. B EE (&)

HiaE o (&)
() (%)
BT RE e 2 REENS REREE

;Etﬁﬁnﬁwa EREEAEERE
R HEEAEF19.66% (=T ——F :
22.88%) © HAMBA QT EESHLER
ERFHEcBEEAMELE2BEESRETE
Bl o BRI TR E B 2B SR ETE A
BRZEBRERME - TEBRIBIEER
ZERERE > ZEEFHAFAEEEEE
RIBEFBHMS2REMEE - FTARR
ﬁg%@ﬁmrﬁ&Mﬁﬁﬁﬁ@Z%i
5 P ©

(b) Pé‘iff%‘e}‘émﬁzi&ﬂ

Fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁiﬁ 5 AR
ZURFHRATF  BE/FHEE - N=
Z-——F+Z-A+AHE BENHESH

R4 LEHERR (BYRE 38) °

19. RBEE QR 2 Em

The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E—_—F —_E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted FEH
Shares, at cost B3 - AR - =
Share of net assets L EEFE - =
Listed in Hong Kong REBLS
Share of net assets, including BEEESFE  BEREBRZ
goodwill on acquisition (GRS 49,396 =
49,396 —
Less: impairment loss recognised i - BREFBERE (6,137) =
43,259 —
Market value of listed shares twRfzmE 43,259 =
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jallStatements

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REt&E QR 2= (&)
At 31 December 2012, the Group had interests in R-ZE——-F+=-H=+—0'&x5EE
the following associates: RUTHEARPHEERER !
Country/place of Proportion of voting
incorporation Principal place  Class of power held
Name of associate HRA of operation shares held FEREE LA Principal activities
NGRS B%,/1h% IEEERY i RGER Directly Indirectly TE£%K
EE B
Unlisted
LH
Spark Concept Group Limited British Virgin Hong Kong Ordinary 49% —  Investment holding
Islands
XBRLEE &k LER REER
Listed in Hong Kong
RERLT
China Media and Films Holdings Limited  Gayman Islands ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 29% —  Investment holding
(formerly known as KH Investment and continued
Holdings Limited)
in Bermuda
PEERTRERARA HERE . B3 tEp REBR
AR = E P 0 AT
(EU%%IE&&EH&EF&L\ ﬂ) jﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ggﬁ
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REt&E QR 2= (&)
Notes: HBiat -
(@) Spark Concept Group Limited (@) Spark Concept Group Limited

On 15 December 2011, the Group acquired 49% of
the issued share capital of Spark Concept Group
Limited at a consideration of HK$49. Spark Concept
Group Limited is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are catering
and trading. The principal places of operation of
Spark Concept Group Limited and its subsidiaries
are in Hong Kong.

Summarised financial information in respect of Spark
Concept Group Limited and its subsidiaries is as

R-ZZFE——F+=-A+EH xEEMN
B & X 8498 7t W B Spark Concept
Group Limited B % 17 IR X 249% °
Spark Concept Group Limited & — &
REEZERAF - HMB AR ZETEXER
BEEKE S - Spark Concept Group
Limited & H KB A 8 = = Z & it 2y
REHE

AR Spark Concept Group Limited & &
MEBLARAMBEERBENT

follows:

2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Total assets EEHAE 10,405 2,334
Total liabilities aEwE (15,655) (4,355)
Net liabilities BEFHE (5,250) (2,021)

Group’s share of net assets of
associates AEBELBEARNEEFE - =
2012 2011
—B--F =F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Total revenue Uy 548 %8 12,444 519
Total loss for the year REEEBERE 3,229 427
Group’s share of loss of associates REEELEE QTS - =

Group’s share of other comprehensive REBELIEEE QT
income of associates Hih 2wk

Annual Report 2012 —Z——F F ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k1B REEIZERBR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB % EIEEER AT

China Media and Films Holdings Limited (“China
Media”)

On 3 August 2012, the Group acquired 146,640,000
ordinary shares in China Media, representing
approximately 29% of the issued share capital of
China Media, at a consideration of HK$51,324,000.
China Media is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are artist
management and film production and distribution.
The principal places of operation of China Media and
Films Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are in
Hong Kong.

Included in the interests in an associate, the
goodwill on acquisition of China Media is measured
at HK$25,397,000.

At 31 December 2012, the investment in China
Media was tested for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount with its carrying amount. At 31
December 2012, the market value of the 146,640,000
ordinary shares in China Media was HK$43,259,000.
The market value of the investment in China Media
is compared with its carrying amount for testing
impairment and an impairment loss recognised
in respect of an associate of HK$6,137,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

el

19. REHE QT 2 (A)

BiaE : (4&)

(b)

HEEREZRERERLE(THEEE]D)

R=ZZB-—Z-FNA=ZR0 ' XEEURKE
51,324,000 & jT W 8 146,640,000 A% H El
BEEREBRUATEER 2ERITRAN
29%)c FEIERES -—BHREZRDF -
HNBARZEIEXBRBEAETEREY
BUER BT - FREEESRERBRAF
REWBLAB 2 EREXBHUNEE -

REENT2EZTERRETRER >
& 3184 25,397,0008 T ©

RZE—ZF+-A=1+—H ' RHH
BER2BEUETNESHEELREE
HhHBETRENR RZF——-F+=
B=+—H 146,640,000 }& & B {& i &
R 2 ™ {E 543,259,000 5T o MR H
EHERE s RETECEHEREELB#ET
BERR  MERRABE QR ZRERE
6,137,000 B tERBE T ——_F+=
B=t—HILEEZGZERERER -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REEE DB 2L (EF)
Notes: (Continued) BtaE - (48)
(b) China Media and Films Holdings Limited (“China (b) HEERFBZERERAT(HEEE])

Media”) (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of China
Media and its subsidiaries is as follows:

(4&)

BREATEEEREKME AR 2 EE R
=M :

2012 2011
—B--F =F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total assets EEHRE 95,638 =
Total liabilities =Ltk (12,882) —
Net assets EEFE 82,756 _
Group’s share of net assets of rEEEGEEARNEETE
associates 23,999 —
2012 2011
—g-=# N
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total revenue W sa%E 10,112 —
Total loss for the period from —ET-——_H#)\B=HZE
3 August 2012 to 31 December 2012 —E-——_HF+-HA=+—HIt
HEEBEARE 6,647 —
Group’s share of loss of associates AREEELEE QTR 1,928 =

Group’s share of other comprehensive REBEELNIEEE QT
income of associates Hih2mEE
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20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES

The convertible notes receivables contain
two components: debt and conversion option
components. The debt component is accounted
for as loans and receivables while the conversion
option component is accounted for as derivative
financial instrument.

Movements in the debt components of
convertible notes receivables during the year
were as follows:

20. EWTRRE

BB RESESEMESD  EHERR
BEERERD  EHBODARBEE
REEWRRIE - MEBBEZEISH AR
AUTESRMTA -

BRTREREE2EBREBORERZE
BOT :

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—z--—& -Z3——%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January Hn—HB—H 354,729 —
Subscription of convertible notes RBUBRBREE
(notes a, b and c) (Htita- -bRc) 21,451 349,980
Imputed interest income on BWABREREZGE
convertible notes receivables FE WA 50,086 18,478
Interest received on convertible R A#BREE 2
notes receivables 2 RS (32,794) (13,729)
Early redemption of convertible REBERABRRERE
notes (note b) (K&t b) (70,312) —
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—8H 323,160 354,729
Analysed for reporting purposes as: E2RAR I A :
Non-current assets (notes a and c) EREEE(Mitakc) 323,160 289,857
Current assets (note b) nBEE(MED) - 64,872
323,160 354,729
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=F

20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

China Star Entertainment Limited (“China Star”)

On 7 July 2011, China Star issued the convertible
notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$350,000,000 to the Group. The convertible notes
are unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per annum
and maturing on 6 July 2016.

The convertible notes carry rights entitling the
holders thereof to convert their principal amount
into ordinary shares in China Star at an adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.44 per share (subject to
further adjustment, if required) during the period from
7 July 2011 to 5 July 2016. On 17 November 2011,
the adjusted conversion price was further adjusted
from HK$0.44 per share to HK$0.36 per share
(subject to further adjustment, if required) pursuant
to the declaration of special dividend by China Star.
On 7 December 2012, the adjusted conversion price
was further adjusted from HK$0.36 per share to
HK$0.12 per share (subject to further adjustment)
pursuant to the bonus issue of shares and issue
of bonus convertible notes by China Star. Unless
previously redeemed or converted, any amount of
the convertible notes which remains outstanding
on the maturity date shall be redeemed at its then
outstanding principal amount.

The debt component of convertible notes is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt component is 13.17% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion options embedded in convertible notes
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

At 31 December 2012, the convertible notes
receivable from China Star that were expected to
be recovered over 12 months from the end of the
reporting period were classified as non-current
assets.
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(@) PEHEEEERLA(HEHLE]

NR-EB——EtBtH FHEERLAEE
2% {7 7~ % 42 %8350,000,0008 T 2 A #&
BEE - TREZEAEIKF  REFE
8% T ERBR-ZB—ANFELANBRE -

MR ZEEEFEBEAEN R=F
——FtAtBEE=ZE-XELtAHBEH
HiEER044 BT ZEARBRBRE(TT
E—SHABUNE))BERESFEL AP
BECvEZER R=-ZFZ——F+—-A++t

B £&AZERECKREPEESIRER

REASROMBTE—SHAREZER
o.seiﬁﬁ(ﬁf%iﬁ_—iaﬁg(w%)) ° R
Z-—FE+-FtH KARBRERE
FEE 2 AR BITAR K BTAR AR
ZEHRSTR036ETE-—SHAREER
0.12BT (A FHE—FSHARE) - BRIESTATE
BEE s AR o A ZIEA B SRR 2
THRREBEAREERABER o ANSEHE
[E] o

TRBREBE2EB LD RBHERAE
SR MEBHOIERINREESF
13.17% ° HIBRZRMODNEGES B HR
MEUERTRBRRBEAS 2 AIREERE
25 -

R-ZZFB—=—F+=HA=+—8 ' FEHER
SRR E12EABKEZEKRPEEZ
ARBREENSBAERBEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=F

20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 &R

Culture Landmark Investment Limited (“Culture
Landmark”)

On 29 December 2011, Culture Landmark issued the
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$75,000,000 to the Group. The convertible
notes are unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per
annum and maturing on 28 December 2012.

The convertible notes carry rights entitling the
holders thereof to convert their principal amount
into ordinary shares in Culture Landmark at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.08 per share
(subject to adjustment) during the period from 29
December 2011 to 27 December 2012. Unless
previously redeemed or converted, any amount of
the convertible notes which remains outstanding
on the maturing date shall be redeemed at its then
outstanding principal amount.

The debt component of the convertible notes is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt components is 29.65% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion options embedded in convertible notes
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

During the year, the convertible notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$75,000,000
were early redeemed by Culture Landmark at par.
Accordingly, a loss arising on early redemption of
convertible notes receivables of HK$1,930,000 was
recognised.

Koffman Corporate Service Limited (“Koffman”)

On 22 March 2012, Koffman issued the convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$27,000,000 to the
Group. The convertible note is unsecured, interest
free and maturing on 21 March 2015.

Provided that the convertible note has not been
redeemed, the whole convertible note shall
automatically be converted into shares in Koffman
upon the success of initial public offering of
Koffman’s shares at the price of initial public
offering. Any amount of the convertible note which
remains outstanding on the maturity date shall
be redeemed by Koffman at its then outstanding
principal amount plus a premium calculated at 20%
of the then outstanding principal amount.

The debt component of the convertible note is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt component is 7.97% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion option embedded in convertible notes
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

At 31 December 2012, the convertible note

receivable from Koffman was classified as non-
current assets.

FIREBEERAR

_I

e H = — g

. Bl R RE (@)

BiaE ()

(b)

(c)

AL RIREBR AT ([ iR 1)

RZE——F+ZA=+hIAB  XtitE
6] 7 £ B 3% 17 4~ & 42 %8 75,000,000 38 7T
CHBRBREE - BRKRE E%ﬂﬁﬁ 7
FEREA2% FTERER= —#+=AH
—+NBEHH -

ARREEHRTHEAE AER
——f+=H= +jLE|;=—;;——$+_
A=+t HHERER0.088 T 2 AH
RE(ATFAR)BEASHEL BB
B2EER - BRIFLAEED S LB
EMREH R EREE 2 T RREESER
AREERARED 2 ASFHEED -

ABRREL GBI 6H T8 HEK
AR MEBIO2ERANERALSE
29.65% ° AIEZERBHNESPH
5R2EJL>U1EH&—J#EXZ<}F RE2HREE
E2 I

i SE i

FR - AE 4 %75,000,00058 T2 7
BREFECH LB ZEREMEREER -
Hit CHRRARFECERTRREZEE
4 2518 1,930,000 38 T ©

EERMELEARBZERLAATSER])

NZEBE-——-F=A=+=H ' 5sRAXK
£ B2 T/ £ 5827,000,00058 T 2 7 #&
REE - IRREELERT RERE

R-Z-—"F=H—+— A2 -

i TR RIEREED - B 2 AR R
}E/AJ\?-AI_JEEHX%}ZE/A;—\\E‘%%EJ“E*uﬁ

TERREANHAREEAFLNRASER
Hﬁfﬁ o ARMA R B IR E D 2 AT R =
BEHARNSEREAERAER 2AS
HELD - ZNREFREDARNEE20% 5t
B2 REEE -

ARREBEZEBHO DIEEHERAE
R MEBHROZERMNEZREF
7.97% o RIRBIEBEILMD GRS BBRR
%JL,{FEHSZ—H‘%&%E?FWA ZHREERS
7

R-ZB——-F+=-A=+—H EBKSE

EZ—H‘*HQ:R}EE PERERBEE °
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

_é?o"ri's_ol-'idated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

21, AHHESREE

ASSETS
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E—_—F —_E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities in Hong &EzZ EHTRAZES%
Kong, at fair value RAYE
At 1 January m—A—H 58,960 53,720
Additions during the year (note b)  FRHRE(Hitb) 13,410 50,020
Net gain/(loss) arising on EfATHEESREEEE
revaluation of available-for-sale ZWam(EE)F8E
financial assets 57,129 (44,780)
129,499 58,960
Unlisted debt security FLEWEKES
Club debenture (note d) &S (MiFd) 172 172
At 31 December R+=-—HA=+—H 129,671 59,132
Notes: Mt
(@) All of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are held (@) FIEEBLTRABSBEREREHR

for long-term investment purpose and stated at fair
values. Fair values of the listed equity securities are
determined by reference to the quoted market bid
prices available on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB % EIEEER AT

On 27 November 2012, the Group exercised the
subscription rights attached to the bonus warrants
issued by China Star in the principal amount of
HK$7,450,000 to subscribe for 35,990,338 new
shares in China Star at an adjusted subscription
price of HK$0.207 per share. The 35,990,338 new
shares in China Star were allotted and issued to the
Group on 4 December 2012.

On 20 November 2012, the board of directors of
China Star proposed the bonus issue of shares and
issue of bonus convertible notes for the purpose
of fulfilling the minimum public float requirement.
At the request of China Star, the Group elected to
receive the bonus convertible notes in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$6,079,806.76 in lieu of its
entitlement to the 607,980,676 bonus shares under
the bonus issue. The bonus convertible notes carry
rights entitling the holders thereof to convert their
principal amount into new shares in China Star at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.01 per share
(subject to adjustment) at any time after their issue.
Please refer to the prospectus of China Star dated
12 December 2012 for more details. The bonus
convertible notes are accounted for as available-for-
sale financial assets for financial reporting purpose.

The club debenture is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. As the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant,
the directors of the Company consider that its fair
value cannot be measured reliably. During the year,
the Group identified no impairment loss related to
the club debenture (2011: Nil).

el

21. AHHESREE(#F)

BiaE : (4&)

(b)

(c)

(d

RZB——F+—A=+tH XEET
FHEE%T N€%5H7,450,00058 T
A TR RREE M = RERE - REH
EREEER0.207 58 T EE 35,990,338
BHEEHFRD R-ZE——-F+=-AN
B + 35,990,338 R EFH MK
BFAEH -

R=F-—-—F+—-A=+8 HHEE
ESEBERTANRDRBETAFNTH
BREZE UHEBREARERERE -
EHhEE-ER AEEREWRAS
#2%66,079,806.7678 7T Z AL A 2 IR =
B URBHERAANBTETAIZEEZ
607,980,676 BR AL B% o AL 7 7] #2 B% = 45 B
FTHEBAERN  REZBTEEMGER
BRO.01BL 2T RBRE(TFRAR) K
HERASBEHBATHEENRD - E—FF
BEZETEER =T ——F+=A+=
BRIZZER - AR TRBREHEUATHE
ESMEEAR  UMEMBER2A -

ERESERAHNBRBRESE@EA)S
fRe HREHSEQRFPEMT ZEE KR
R ARPDESRRHEQNFEEETSEST
B FRAAEEUERFSFES ZRE
BR(CE——F %)
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Notes to the Cd'ﬁ's-dl-'idated Financial Statements
FEMBEREME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

22, ESRWERR

The Group
AEH

2012 2011
=F-=F =F——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0-30 days ZZ30H 41 4,844
31-60 days 31Z60H — =
61-90 days 61Z290H - —
Over 90 days 90 H U L 396 396
437 5,240
Less: impairment loss recognised & - SRERREERE (396) (396)
41 4,844

The Group allows an average credit period of 90

days to its customers.

Notes:

(@) The following is an aged analysis of the trade
receivables (net of impairment loss, if any) at the end

of the reporting period:

AEEGETEEFFIIORZEER -

Biaz -

(@)

RERBR B 5 BBRRNRAERS
BNE))BRZREDTWT

The Group
AEE

2012 2011
=F-—=F =F——F
HK$’°000 HK$°000

FET FET
0-30 days Z230H 41 4,844
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 AEBHRTFHEHEFFHBZEER -

days to its customers.

(b) At 31 December 2012, the Company had no trade
receivables past due but not impaired (2011: Nil).
The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated F_fhﬁﬁ'éial Statements

fn & MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22,

B2 BWIRR (@)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Aging of impaired trade receivables is as follows:

HiaE - ()

(c) CEREEZEWIRFZIRENT :

The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E-_F —F——F
HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET
Over 90 days 90 AL k£ 396 396
23. LOANS RECEIVABLES 23. EWER
The Group

AEE
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loans to customers MEFREHEZER 52,141 =
Accrued interest receivables FEURFESTFI B 8,612 =
60,753 —
Less: impairment loss recognised i - BREFBERE - —
60,753 —

All term loans and advances are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars. The loans receivables carry
fixed effective interest ranging approximately

from 8% to 48% per annum. A maturity profile

of the loans receivables (net of impairment
allowance, if any) at 31 December 2012 and
2011, based on the maturity date is as follows:

FFEEHERRBRUBTAEN -
EWERZEEERFEFENFL8%
BA8% c MZB——FER-_ZT——F
+TZA=+—H  REZHAZEKE
RONBRBERE(A)) 2EBHAE0
T

The Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E—_—F —_=E——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 60,753 —

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)
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fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

23. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EWER#E)
At 31 December 2012, certain term loans R-ZE—=ZF+ZA=+—H ' &F
amounted to approximately HK$4,103,000 are EHEFR# 4,103,000 8 T A A FELD
secured by the pledge of customers’ properties 21,920,000 8B T 2 B F IR AW EF K
at fair value of approximately HK$21,920,000. o
24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 24, #% - AARERHEAMERTIE
RECEIVABLES
The Group
A EE
2012 2011
—E——F —EFE——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Deposits BE 838 1,114
Prepayments TR FIE 107 103
Other receivables (note) HAth FE W TR IE (H12E) 13,870 14,065
14,815 15,282
Note: BaE -
At 31 December 2012, other receivables mainly represent R-ZB——-—F+=-A=+—8  EtEKFHFE
the interest income receivable on the convertible notes FTEERRTEREERRTEFRZERIE
receivables and bank deposit amount to approximately WA 2 BI# 13,655,000 7T % 215,000 T (=
HK$13,655,000 and HK$215,000 respectively (2011: Z——%F : 5 5113,729,000%8 jt & 316,000 8
HK$13,729,000 and HK$316,000 respectively). IT) °
25. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 25. FEUWEiE A RIRIE
Amount due from an associate disclosed BN TEMBIE 161B 66 2 FEUREE 2 N T
pursuant to section 161B of the Companies HIEBWT :
Ordinance is as follows:
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during The Group
the year rEE
FRKEEZ 2012 2011
Be24E —E—CfF —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Advance Top =51 7,393 7,393 2,003
Less: impairment loss B BERBEERE
recognised (3,865) =
3,528 2,003

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand.

FERRELEER RERABRERE
I8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn & MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. EAFEFFABERZEHMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E--—f —B——&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investments held-for-trading: BEEEZRE :
Listed equity securities in Hong BB LETRAES
Kong, at fair value BN E 25,199
Listed derivatives in Hong Kong, ERAzLEMOTETR
at fair value BATE - 2,730
25,199 47,038

During the year ended 31 December 2011,
40,000,000 bonus warrants were issued to the
Group pursuant to the bonus issue of warrants
by China Star to its shareholders on the basis of
one warrant for every five rights shares taken up
under the rights issue as completed on 29 June
2011.

On 27 November 2012, the Group exercised the
subscription rights attached to 35,990,338 bonus
warrants of China Star in the principal amount of
HK$7,450,000 to subscribe for 35,990,338 new
shares in China Star at an adjusted subscription
price of HK$0.207 per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2012,
a loss arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$5,169,000 was recognised (2011:
HK$42,772,000).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

BE-Z——S+=-A=t+—H1LtH
B REBEFEHERNERRBTAFNRRK
EE RERABIRER(KRZ-ZT——
FRAZTABRER)EBET ZHRE G
B —ORAREFI2EEQAREERT
40,000,000 B AL R R AR REE ©

R-ZE-——-F+—-—A=+tH £KHE
17 £35,990,33813 74~ £ %E7,450,000
BLZHPEEANRREZHS 2RE
B REARIBEESR0207E TR
#% 35,990,338 R EI £ F IR 1D ©

BE-_Z-—-—Ff+=-A=+—HL#F
E ERRRBRLOTFETABEZRZSH
EEZAVEEEES 2E1E 5,169,000
BIT(ZZE——5F 42,772,000 T) °
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Notes to the_ébhsolidated Financial Statements
e M ¥R TR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

27. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES

Conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivables represent the conversion option
components of convertible notes receivables from
China Star and Koffman, which are measured at
fair value using a binomial option pricing model,
at initial recognition and at the end of each
reporting period.

Movements in the conversion option components

27. BRAMBRRBEAS ZHREER

RRAMHRRFEAS 2R REEREE
THENGERZERATRREE 2R
BMEBEENG ARNTEIARZHH
AR BEAPEEEEXRQFET

fein

FEWARRREANS 2R REEREH

of convertible notes receivables during the year RERZEBHANT :
were as follows:
The Group
AEH
2012 2011
—--F 2%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1 January K—A—H 75,282 -
Subscription of convertible notes RBUBRREE
— conversion option components ~ — RiRRIZREIRH 5,549 75,020
Gain arising on change in fair value K HiRZEEEIH 2D E
of conversion option components B E4 2 42 262
Early redemption of convertible REERL AR ERE
notes (6,617) —
At 31 December R+=A=+—8H 74,256 75,282
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fn & MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

27. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN 27. BEROBRREBERNES 2 HIBBRER

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES (&
(Continued)
Notes: HaE -
(@) China Star (@ HEEZ
Binomial option pricing model is used for valuation “IEANBAEEEEN T A UM R REE
for the conversion option component. The inputs into B RZE——F+=-HB=+—8
the model at 31 December 2012, 31 December 2011 —E——F+-f=+—HEZE——F
and 7 July 2011, being the date of subscription, tAtHE(REBH) ZEXHASHW
were as follows: T
7 July 2011
(date of
subscription)
31 December 2012 31 December 2011 —E——F
—E-C-F —E2——F tAtH
+=HA=+—H +=-—HA=+—8H (REAH)
Stock price HK$0.142 HK$0.220 HK$0.255
RAD B 0.14238 7T 0.22038 7T 0.255 87T
Conversion price HK$0.12 per share HK$0.36 per share HK$0.44 per share
HiafE BRO.12B T FR0.368 T BRRO0.445B T
Volatility 65.11% 87.55% 85.82%
IR
Dividend yield Zero Zero Zero
IRE Wz =R = = =z
Option life 3.52 years 4.52 years 5 years
FAREF B 3.52 F 4.52 F 5%
Risk-free rate 0.192% 0.854% 1.371%
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

27. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN 27.
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Culture Landmark

Binomial option pricing model is used for valuation
for the conversion option component. The inputs into
the model at 3 August 2012 and 28 May 2012, being
the dates of early redemption, and 31 December
2011 were as follows:

3 August 2012
(date of early
redemption)

ERTHREREEAS cHIRRER

=

(#&

BiaE - (4&)

(b)  3bibiz

“HEAHEEEERXT AU RERE
BB -R-F-—-—FNR=ZHEK=ZF
——FRAZtNB(MREEEDAH) K
“E-—f+ZA=t-RZBEXBAZ
BT

28 May 2012
(date of early
redemption) 31 December 2011

—E——fF
AA=TNR —F——F
(RE®EAEH) +t=A=+—~H
HK$0.069 HK$0.084
0.069 & T 0.084 % 7T

HKO0.08 per share HK$0.08 per share

—E——F
NA=H
(REEEAH)
Stock price HK$0.06
RER 0.06 & T
Conversion price HK$0.08 per share
RiaE B 0.0878 T
Volatility 80.26%
R
Dividend yield Zero
BB W= z
Option life 0.41 year
I 0.41%
Risk-free rate 0.14%

EEREFIR
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#8R0.08%8 T

86.17%

Zero

0.59 year

0.59F

0.14%

&1 0.0858 T

70.19%

Zero

0.99 year

0.99 F

0.24%
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

27. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN 27. BT BRREBERNES 2 HIBBRER

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES (&
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat o (&)
() Koffman (c) BER
Binomial option pricing model is used for valuation —EAHREEEXN AN G RRRE
for the conversion option component. The inputs into EBD - R_B——F+-A=+—HK
the model at 31 December 2012 and 22 March 2012, “E-—HF-A-+-H(MRBEH) 2
being the date of subscription, were as follows: BEXEASEAOT
22 March 2012
(date of
31 December 2012 subscription)
—E——F
—E——F =A=+=H
+=A=+—-H (B\A)
Stock price HK$20.6 HK$58.6
IR E 4% 20.6 87T 58.6 T
Conversion price HK$60 per share HK$60 per share
HIBRE FR60E T FR60ET
Volatility 43.90% 45.89%
R iE
Dividend yield 19.76% Zero
IR B W zm = =
Option life 2.23 years 3 years
HREFH 2.23%F 3
Risk-free rate 0.117% 0.404%
g B
28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. BERFATEEY
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the RERERERMTAERPRZERS
reporting periods as shown in the consolidated RESEEYIHEHGEMBRREXZE
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the BIEEHERNT :
related items in the consolidated statement of
financial position as follows:
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2012 2011 2012 2011

—§--f -T--§ Z-B--f -T-—F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Hong Kong Dollars BT 297,967 217,609 7,339 18,876
United States Dollars E - 23 - =
297,967 217,632 7,339 18,876
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

29. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE

On 20 November 2012, Rexdale entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party relating to the disposal
of the investment properties located in Kwun
Tong at a cash consideration of HK$586,000,000.
At 31 December 2012, the disposal has not
been completed and the investment properties
held by Rexdale were reclassified as assets
held for sale in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The fair value of the
investment properties at 31 December 2012 was
HK$603,000,000 and a gain arising on change
in fair value of HK$168,000,000 was recognised
in the consolidated income statement during the
year. The fair value of the investment properties
at 31 December 2012 has been arrived on the
basis of a valuation carried out by Peak Vision,
by reference to the market prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions.
The disposal of the investment properties is
expected to be completed within the next 12
months.

The assets classified as held for sale was as

29. 7ERBFFHEZEE

R-ZZFE—-—=—%F+—HA=+1H  Rexdale
H-ERUE=FFYHBREERZ
ANAEBEUE £ K {E586,000,000%
THEVNRBEZREYE - R_F
—Z—F+ZA=+—H HEZHEH
KT MRexdaleF A2 ZERE
NERGEMBRARAEEF I ES
BEHEZEE - R=-_Z—=-+=A4
=t+—H ZEREVNEZLAFESR
603,000,000t FAAFEEHE
4 2 Y %5 168,000,000 T I R 4R & U
mRER  REREVER-_ZT——F
+TZA=+-—HZAFEDIRERES
ZHECUMBRER 2B ECTEE
TREBERER FEAHEEZEREY
EBRAET12EB AT °

DER/BEHEZEENT ¢

follows:
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
At 1 January B—A—H - -
Transfer from investment properties B EHIREYE
(note 17) (HiaE17) 603,000 —
At 31 December R+=—B=+—8H 603,000 —
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. ®A&

Movements in the share capital of the Company RABBRARFRZEBUT
during the year were as follows:

Number of shares Share capital
BB (LN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--§ —B--% CZEBE-Zf CE——F
’000 000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Fi FiE FET FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0.018 T
(2011: HK$0.01 each) (ZE——%F:
SREE0.018T)
ZEBR
Authorised: ZE
At 1 January R—B—H 10,000,000 2,000,000 100,000 20,000
Authorisation of new shares EEMR M
(note a) (H3Fa) — 8,000,000 - 80,000
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—-H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITRHE -
At 1 January R—B—H 7,934,353 1,102,112 79,344 11,021
Placing of new shares Fie & 37 R 42
(notes b and e) (Wb Re) 30,670 220,280 306 2,203
Open offer of new shares (note c) REEEHRH (HfFc) - 6,611,961 - 66,120
Capital reorganisation (note d) BREML(Hitd)
— Share consolidation — RBAEH (7,735,994) — - —
— Share reduction — BB - - (77,360) —
Exercise of share options TERE R RE
(notes f and g) (Bt fRg) 19,420 - 194 -
At 31 December R+=A=+-8H 257,449 7,934,353 2,574 79,344
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 14 July 2011, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
to HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by the creation of
an additional 8,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

On 17 June 2011, 220,280,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a
price of HK$0.135 per share by way of a top-up
placing under general mandate. The net proceeds
of HK$29,378,000 were intended to be used for
financing the proposed acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Adelio as announced by the
Company on 2 June 2011.

On 15 August 2011, 6,611,960,980 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
at a subscription price of HK$0.04 per new share
by way of open offer to the qualifying shareholders
of the Company on the basis of five new shares for
every one existing share held on 25 July 2011. The
net proceeds of HK$260,689,000 were intended to
be used for financing the proposed acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Adelio.

On 9 May 2012, the capital of the Company was
reorganised involving (i) every 40 existing shares
of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital of
the Company be consolidated into one share of
HK$0.40 (the “Consolidated Share”) (the “Share
Consolidation”); (ii) the total number of the
Consolidated Shares in the issued share capital of
the Company be rounded down to a whole number
by cancelling the fractional Consolidated Share
arising from the Share Consolidation; (iii) the paid-up
capital of each Consolidated Share be reduced from
HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.39 (together
with (ii) above are hereinafter referred to as the
“Capital Reduction”) so as to form a new share of
HK$0.01; and (iv) the amount of credit arising in the
accounts of the Company from the Capital Reduction
be credited to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

On 18 May 2012, 39,670,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a price
of HK$0.32 per share by way of placing of new
shares under specific mandate. The net proceeds
of HK$12,338,000 were intended to be used for
financing possible property investment project
of the Group and/or enhancing the Group’s fixed
income portfolio by subscribing additional high-yield
convertible notes.
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30. 7 (&)

Hiat -

(@ RZZTE——FtA+HNA FEPLREE
418,000,000,000f% & B M {E0.01%8
TZHEBR ARAAZETERAMH
20,000,00078 7t (5 ¥ & = R E {£0.01
7 Jt 2 2,000,000,000 A% 38 iR ) 12 0 =
100,000,000 T (% 37 & = KR @ E0.01
#3752 10,000,000,000 REZEIR) ©

(b) WM=F——%,A+tAH 220,280,000
BREREEOI BT 2HTEREE—
BEEUALEERTBEE2ZAN > BER
0.135B T 2B MM B R BT o HUMARQ
AR-ZE——FANA-HAM  FIERE
7F%829,378,000 8 T BIEA BB WE
Adelio 2 ZZPE BT AREES -

(¢ M=—Z=——%NA+HH: 6,611,960,980
BREREEIBI2HIZTEREBN=
EZ——EtA-+HEEHEE-RRER
PEXARFTROZEEQLRQATEER
BRERAABEBERMZAN  BERFRK
13 0.04 8 T 2 RBEE R ET - FTER
18 % 46 260,689,000 8 T HIEHBEZE I
B8 Adelio 2 2 EPE BT AREES

(d R=ZZBE—=-FEFAIB  KATAZRAE
B BROTIOBRAQATESBHTRA
FEREECOIEBIZRERNEHAE—
REE0.408 T2 RH([EHKRA 1) (TR
BEB]D ; () BBRFHEBRODAHMEEZ
BHRHOER  BAQTCHITRATZ
ABHBROBLEARETEEY (i)BBFTH
0.398 T BEREHBOZAZRAE
{EFH0.4078 THIM Z0.018 Tt GERF £ XX
(i BHIMRAEIRE ) LLAREEOC.01B T
ZEBRAD 5 B (iv) 5 B A B R AR 2 7 Bk
BFEEZERSHETAARRTAZERR
BRER o

() M=ZT—=—FHA+/\H 39,670,000
BREEO0.018 T 2R D BEBRIFIFH
REUREFRO 2FRX - RERFRH
0.32 BT ZEREE KRBT - IERBF
$812,338,000 B T AER A EE 21
BEMERSEARMESR HEBRE
= B R AT R RIS IR A B 2 B E WA

as -
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Notes to the Consolidated Fina
FeMBERERME

ﬁ'bial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30.

Notes: (Continued)

(f) On 20 December 2012, the Company allotted and
issued 7,120,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at a price of HK$0.345 per share pursuant to
the exercise of share options under the Company’s
share option scheme.

(99 On 28 December 2012, the Company allotted and
issued 12,300,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at a price of HK$0.345 per share pursuant to
the exercise of share options under the Company’s
share option scheme.

31. ACCRUALS, DEPOSIT RECEIVED AND 31.
OTHER PAYABLES

& NE Y
Mt - (4)

fl RZZBE—-F+=-A=+H FxQARE
HERETITHEBRE  EEMK0.345
BT 2 BBl 2% & %17 7,120,000 R & iR
E{E0.01 BT 2B -

(99 R=ZE—Z=-F+=ZA=+NH:'EX2QH
REEBREFETEBERE RER
0.345 7 T 2 B 1% Bi 3 & 2% 17 12,300,000
BREREE.01 BT 2HEER -

EErER  CWZEREMENR
B

The Group The Company
rEH AAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F B C—E--f —E—_—=F
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK’000
FET FET FET FEr
Accruals FEstE A 4,455 8,184 2,604 3,494
Deposit received (note) BWIES (HiF) 58,600 - - -
Other payables HAh I8 5,145 3,603 - —
68,200 11,787 2,604 3,494
Note: Hiat -

At 31 December 2012, deposit received represents the
deposit received in relation to the disposal of investment
properties held by Rexdale amounted to approximately
HK$58,600,000.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

REZZE-—Z=ZF+ZA=+—H BHliREeEH
EHRexdale A ZRENEZCEREEHY
58,600,000 & JT °
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Notes to the Cd'ﬁ's-dl-'idated Financial Statements
FEMBEREME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. IEERIE
The followings are the major deferred tax UTRATIZECHRIAELEHEEBEREE
liabilities and assets recognised and movements REBEZE :
thereon:
The Group AEE

Accelerated Estimated

tax tax
depreciation losses Intangible
il fhst assets Total
RERE RBER BREE @t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

At 1 January 2011 R-E-—-%#-8-H 254 (254) 40,162 40,162
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) WERMB A R (42 36) 2,196 (570) - 1,626
Release on impairment loss recognised in respect  HENEERARESE
of intangible assets (34055 - - (34,889) (34,889)
Charged to consolidated income statement HPN T - 8 - 8
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 RZIE--%
+ZA=1+-Bk
—g--£-3-f 2,450 (816) 5,73 6,907
Release on impairment loss recognised in respect  HEFEEBIAERRE
of intangible assets SR BR - - (4,586) (4,586)
Charged to consolidated income statement FTAGREHER 71 (60) - 11
At 31 December 2012 R-B-ZF
+ZA=+-8 2,521 (876) 687 2332
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn & MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 32.

The Group (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of HK$99,983,000 (2011:
HK$92,736,000) available for offsetting against
future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset
of HK$876,000 (2011: HK$816,000) has been
recognised. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining balance of
HK$99,107,000 (2011: HK$91,920,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

IEFERIE ()
REME(E)

R=ZEBE-——f+=ZA=+—-H8 &%
B A #%99,983,0008 T( =& —— & :
92,736,000 7T ) 2 R B A4 5T K &
BoHiKE R RERBER - 876,000
BT(ZF——1% :816,000/8 7t ) 2 &
ERMBEECERI - HRKEETESA
%2R > I |FEREE 99,107,000
T(=ZZ——% :91,920,000% jt ) 2
FEEBIEEE °

33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33. RIB AR 2=

The Company

AT
2012 2011
—E—_—F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMRG - R 83,553 83,553
Less: impairment losses recognised & - SR BEEE (83,553) (83,553)

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR Y B A Rl FRIE 1,795,609 1,769,337
Less: impairment losses recognised & - EHERBEEIE (975,553) (975,553)
820,056 793,784

The carrying amounts of interests in subsidiaries
are reduced to their recoverable amounts which
are determined by reference to the estimation of
future cash flows expected to be generated from
respective subsidiaries.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are

unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on
demand.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

RMBAR 2R 2 RHEEAREH
TREEE FEIREEEIZZHE
HEREMBLARELE 2T RRES

N ~— =)
/)luii%ﬂc‘ °

BEHEBLARRBERERT REREA
EERER -

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G4



_——

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31

33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

December 2012 are set out as follows:

Country/place of
incorporation

33. RB AR zE (&)

ARBZHBREAR-F—=-F+=A
=t —HZFHFRIOT :

Particulars of issued

Name of subsidiary B3l A share capital Principal activities
WELRER X/t ERTRAZHE FERH
Adelio British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1  Investment holding
RBELHS TREREE1XTLZ REER
BEER

Angel Wish Group Limited

Best Season Holdings Corp.

Bluelagoon Investment Holdings
Limited

Dragon Leader Limited

East Legend Properties Limited

Eternity Finance Group Limited
(Formerly known as “Wingo
Consultants Limited”)

XENBEEERAT
(A% Wingo Consultants Limited)

Gainful Fortune Limited

Golden Stone Management Limited

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G F 5

British Virgin Islands
RBRELZES

British Virgin Islands
RERZEE

British Virgin Islands
RBELHS

British Virgin Islands
RBELHS

British Virgin Islands
RERZHES

British Virgin Islands
RBELHE

British Virgin Islands
KBELHS

British Virgin Islands
RBELEE

1 ordinary share of US$1
1TREREEI ZT2EBR

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

100 REREET1 XL
EER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1TREREE1XT2EER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1RBREE1ZET2EER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1 ZT2EBR

100,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

100,000,000 R EREE
1BTZEER

160,000,100 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

160,000,100 R SR EE
1BTZEBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREEIZT2EER

Investment holding

REER

Dormant
Tmex

Investment holding,
sale of financial assets,
distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film
rights

REER  HESREE
BTBYREREY

RTE

Investment holding

REER

Property holding
ESEL]

Investment holding

REER

Holding of film rights

RAREPRITR

Dormant
Tmex

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED K185 B&1& EHR AR 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. RHE ARz (4#)

Name of subsidiary

WEARAR

Country/place of
incorporation

at i B 32
CESE

Particulars of issued
share capital

EROTREZHE

Principal activities

FTEEK

Goway Properties Limited

Hong Kong Builders Finance Limited

BERBEAERLF

Legend Rich Limited

Max Winner Investments Limited

AEREBRATF

One Synergy Limited

Rexdale

Riche Advertising Limited

Riche (BVI) Limited

Riche Distribution Limited
EXBTERAT

Riche Multi-Media Limited
EXSHEREBRAT

Riche Pictures Limited
EXEERRLA

British Virgin Islands
RBELEHE

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
RBELEE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B8

British Virgin Islands
EBELHS

British Virgin Islands
RERLHS

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B8

British Virgin Islands
RBRELEE

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

1 ordinary share of US$1
1TRERAE1 ZET2ERBR

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REREEI BT
EER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1ZTZEBR

1 ordinary share of HK$1
1TREREE1BT2EBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1TREREE1XT2EBR

10,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

10,000,000 R EREE
1BTZEER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREEI1 ZET2ERBR

1,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
1 OOOHxin@ﬁ
ETZEBR

1,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

1,000,000 R B R EE
1BTZEBR

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
2RBREEI BT

EBER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREEI1 ZET2EER

Annual Report 2012 =& ——

Property holding
NRER

Money lending
REEH

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property holding
N=ER

Sale of financial assets

HESHEE

Investment holding

REER

Sub-licensing of film
rights and sale of
financial assets

EREYRTERHESR
£E

Distribution of films and
other video features
BOSYREMFREE

Investment holding

REER

FEDR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M ¥R TR

33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

33. RIfBE QR 2 (&)

Particulars of issued

Name of subsidiary & 7 X 32 share capital Principal activities
WEARER BX/1t% BRITRAZFE TEXR
Riche Video Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of Distribution of video
EXBIERAT e HK$100 each products
20,000 non-voting deferred ETEEER
shares of HK$100 each*
10REREE100BTZE
BR
20,000 REREE 1008 T
ZERZRELRD
Rich Daily British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Provision of management

Stable Income Limited
BEBRATF

Simple View Investment Limited

Victory Peace Holdings Limited

RBELEHE

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
RBELES

British Virgin Islands
REEZHS

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held

of US$1 each
100 REREE1ZTZ

1,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

1,000,000 B &R EE
1BTZERR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1TREREE1 ZT2EBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1XT2EER

services
RIEEERY

Travel business

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

- RZEEREREEROERLEEN D=

by the Group, carry practically no rights to dividends
nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of Riche Video Limited nor to
participate in any distribution on winding up.

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche
(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

All of the subsidiaries are wholly owned by the
Company, except for Best Season Holdings Corp.
which is 75% owned by the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or
at any time during the reporting period.
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ETERN

RE - R EMNERFZARATRRA
ErBE HEZEASREELREZ
R EERBTR AT ZBEFDIK

AN FHEREE Riche (BVI) Limited 2
R TIEEHMNBARIMYIBEARRDA[E
R -

FrEMBARIYBALARZERE
Best Season Holdings Corp. A& E

BBET75% °

EMBARANRE2HMP A2 RARNEM
REGEEMEAER 2 EHES o
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Notes to the Consolidated Fi?h'éiﬁ'éial Statements
e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

34. RESERVES 34, f#E

The Company ¥ NN

Share-based

payment
Share  Contributed reserve  Accumulated
premium surplus  BURGBER losses Total
RiEE L§ b4 ke b4y i1 st

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FER

(note a) (note b)
(Hita) (Hitb)

At 1 January 2011 WZE--%-F-H 482,493 618,312 12,158 (491,790 621,173
Placing of new shares EENRG 27,535 - - - 27,535
Release on lapse of share options ~ BREXNEHER - - (2,310) 2,310 -
Share-based payment expenses DROF R Z 2B - = 1,300 = 1,300
Share premium cancellation HERDEE (482,493) 9,297) - 491,790 -
Open offer of new shares NRBEHRRA 198,359 - - - 198,359
Share issue expenses RORTER (4,150) = = - (4,150)
Dividends paid (note 15) ERREHF15) - (198,359) - - (198,359)
Loss for the year ERER - - - (5,235) (5,235)
At 31 December 2011 and R=2--F+Zh=t-H

1 January 2012 R=E-—%-f-H 221,744 410,656 11,148 (2,925) 640,623
Capital reorganisation RAEQ = 77,360 = = 77,360
Placing of new shares REFRA 12,298 - - - 12,298
Share issue expenses RABTH (356) - - - (356)
Share-based payment expenses DROF R X 2B - = 1,892 = 1,892
Release on lapse of share options ~ BREXNE#E = - (1,300) 1,300 -
Exercise of share options THERE 8,362 = (1,856) = 6,506
Loss for the year EnEE = = = (6,630) (6,630)
At 31 December 2012 WZB-Z£+ZF=1-H 242,048 488,016 9,884 (8,255) 731,693
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

34. RESERVES (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders on 12 December 2011, the entire
amount of HK$482,493,000 standing to the credit
of the share premium account was cancelled and
such credit amount was applied to the contributed
surplus account where it was utilised by the board
of directors in accordance with the bye-laws of
the Company and all applicable laws to eliminate
the audited accumulated losses of the Company of
HK$491,790,000 at 31 December 2010 entirely.

The contributed surplus account of the Company
represents the difference between the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
as at the date of the group reorganisation and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share capital
issued as consideration for the acquisition as well
as the net amount transferred from share premium
account and to accumulated losses account pursuant
to a special resolution passed at the special general
meeting held on 22 August 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company shall not declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities.

35. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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34. f#E#E)

KRATE (4E)
Wt -

(@ RER-ZZE——F+-BA+HRREAE
BrElREE R-ZE—ZTE+=A8
=+—B BROEEREBEMLCZEZHBS
£6482,493,0008 jt © X=X 85 - ™ =F 8
BOREELEERERSBEEREZAAN
AZEHNRBGE THESSREALQT
ZARMAKR—YERLIESHH B8F
EYKER=—_FT—ZF+=-A=+—H
491,790,000 8 T 2 AR AR EZEFE

B

(b) WER-ZFB=FNA=-FT-RHETZR
REFNAELBBZBRIRER A0 H
ZEBHERRERAAMBEZHE AR
REBEARMZHREEFERELALF
ERWBREZMBTRAZEERBR
R ROGZERERZRFTEERZFR
ZER e

BEBRE-NAN-—F27%E > WARH
BEEERARE

(i) AEAAA¥ER—BEEIRNES
HESAEBZNMERE =5

(i) AAAEEZTZ2RESELER
H&E

AEDFBTEIRRXNRE  REEH
ABBHEH SR -
35. E{IHE L RIRKIE
AT

EHHEADREAREN  RERE
ERMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated'FinanciaI Statements

fn & MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B8z —-F—

36. WIBKE L F

—F+=A=+-ALEE

On 3 January 2012, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with
Koffman Financial Group Limited and Mr. Yu Shu
Kuen, both of them are independent third parties,
for acquiring the entire issued shares in and the
sale loan due by Hong Kong Builders Finance
Limited at a cash consideration of approximately

R-ZE—-—H—-A=H XA&EEHESE
REmEEERARRTHELE(HA
BUE=R)FILERGEERZE  UR
£ 1Z%933,069,000 8 T UK BB B Z B 5%
ERATRZEHBEBRITROKRFAERZ
HEER WEBEEER-E—Z-F—
BHEBZRERK °

HK$33,069,000. The acquisition was completed
on 5 January 2012.

HK$’000
FET
Loans receivables ERER 33,605
Other receivables H b fE UL R 1E 912
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBE2ZEEY 5
Accruals and other payables Bt ERREMESRIE (1,212)
Amount due to the shareholder FE{S IR R FRIE (32,295)
Tax payable FEAS B IR (209)
806
Sale loan HEER 32,295
Gain on a bargain purchase REBE W& (32)
Total consideration, satisfied by cash BRE - UBREeXS 33,069
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEBEEELHEHRHFE
Cash consideration paid EFHEERE 33,069
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWBzRERESEEY (5)
33,064

The gain on a bargain purchase represented
the excess of the fair value net assets as at FEEBA
the acquisition date over the fair value of the

consideration.
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RERBEZUSEERKWBEMFEEEDR

BAVEZEHE-

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Continued)

Hong Kong Builders Finance Limited contributed
approximately HK$9,785,000 to the Group’s
turnover and a profit of approximately
HK$2,218,000 to the Group during the period
from 5 January 2012, being the date of
acquisition, to 31 December 2012.

Had the acquisition been completed at the
beginning of the year 2012, the Group’s
total revenue for the year would have been
HK$67,536,000 and the profit for the year would
have been HK$206,352,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only and is
not necessarily an indicative revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 5 January 2012, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.
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36. WIEK B LR (@)

BE-Z-—F+-A=1+—-HLHFE
()

BE-Z—_—F—AhRAAKEEH)
E-E—_—_F+-A=+—HHEHH B
EUMBEERARAAEB 2E XETR
#79,785,0007%8 Jt » I A& 7N & B F R E
F# 2,218,000 7T °

MUK BEEER-_Z-——_FILER
B AEBRRNEFEZRELENR
67,536,000 T MAFE 2 =FEH
206,352,000 T - EZEREREH
BRAZ BEABRRRBEEENR=-F
——_F—-BEHERAEEKTERR
BrlakCEEEEE THBRAE
FERIRRELE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36.

g1y WNCITE )

For the year ended 31 December 2011

On 25 May 2011, the Group entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party for acquiring the
entire issued share capital of Adelio at a cash
consideration of HK$262,022,000. Pursuant to
the conditional sale and purchase agreement,
the sale share shall be sold and transferred to
the Group together with all rights and liabilities
of any nature whatsoever attaching to it on
the date of the conditional sale and purchase
agreement, including the rental income from the
investment properties held by Rexdale, all rights
to any dividends or other distributions declared,
paid or made in respect of it after the date of
the conditional sale and purchase agreement,
save and except for the rights and obligations
under the secured loan obtained from a bank.
The acquisition was completed on 23 December
2011.

BE-F-——F+-A=+-HLEFE

R-ZZTE—-——FHA=-+HAB  X&EH
EH-ZBIUE=ATLERGEER
% RE L MKR{E262,022,000 5T U EE
Adelioz ZEBEBITRA - RIBBKGHE
BEEWEZ TERVEER —IREK
HEEHZEABRAMRE 2 EAEEER
REE(BERexdale FiFREWEZH
SWA - WEBRERGEEHEAREZ
FIEiR ~ RS 1E 2 EM AR B HAth
DR —EAN)HEREETES - B
TEEERITHNEB2EHRFERZER
REF WEEENR-_ZT——F+=A
Zt+=H%MK °

HK$’000
FET
Investment properties REWZE 435,000
Deposits A 369
Prepayments FEAT B 57
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBE2ZEEY 2,880
Accruals EstE R (427)
Other payables Hibh S RIE (281)
Rental deposits received [EAEisk R s (3,113)
Promissory note payable BAESERE (118,000)
Amount due to the shareholder P IR R FRIE (635)
Deferred taxation EIERLIE (1,626)
Secured bank loan BEIFRITER (172,480)
141,744
Waiver of net amount due to the shareholder  EA% FE{S IR R FRIEFEE 635
Repayment of secured bank loan HEFEEFEART
by the vendor S 172,480
Gain on a bargain purchase REBE W& (52,837)
Total consideration, satisfied by cash BRE UBReXS 262,022
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEREEELEZHESRE FEE
Cash consideration paid 2HRERE 262,022
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWECRERBEEEY (2,880)
259,142

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)
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fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Continued)

The gain on a bargain purchase represented
the excess of the fair value net assets as at
the acquisition date over the fair value of the
consideration. It is mainly attributable to the
increase in fair value of the net assets acquired
caused by the increase in fair value of investment
properties as compared to the date of the
conditional sale and purchase agreement.

Adelio and its subsidiaries contributed
approximately HK$281,000 to the Group’s
turnover and a profit of approximately HK$29,000
to the Group during the period from 23 December
2011, being the date of acquisition, to 31
December 2011.

Had the acquisition been completed at the
beginning of the year 2011, the Group’s
total revenue for the year would have been
HK$91,977,000 and the loss for the year would
have been HK$16,544,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only and
is not necessarily an indicative revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 23 December 2011, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.
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36. WIEK B LR (@)

—E-—F+ZA=+—-BLEFEEE)

REBEZWEDERKRBRAHZFE
EATFEBHRELAFEZEE  HE
ERBFUBREEEZAFEEREY
ERBRHEEBZE AP 22 FEEMN
FRrEL -

R=F——H+=-A=-1+=H(MKRBESE
HEHM)Z=F——F+=-A=+—RAH
B AdelioREMBARRAEE &
HEFTIRA281,000 8T ARAEH
T HER 49 29,0008 7T ©

MK BEBEER =T ——FFA%
B AIAEB2AEFEARZE A
91,977,000 Tt MAFEBEL S
16,544,0008 7T - HEZERHEMFE -
F—ERBMEBEER_-_ZT——F
T AT+ =HERMEBERAERZK
EERRREEEE TEEEARRK
EE oA -
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e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 Bl Z —F——F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

37. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND 37. ZRBENEBELATNWNBEEENRERS
LIABILITIES THROUGH PURCHASE
OF A SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE-Z——fF+=-H=1+—HLEE

On 26 October 2011, assets and liabilities were AZE——F+A=Z+AH ZXEHE
acquired through the acquisition of the entire i LL X {8 6,500,000 78 Jt U B Dynamic
issued share capital of Dynamic Eagle at a Eaglez 2 BEBTRAKBEERE
consideration of HK$6,500,000. Dynamic Eagle is f& ° Dynamic Eagle f{t B EF B X -

engaged in property holding business.

Since the principal assets of Dynamic Eagle are A Dynamic Eagle2 EZ2EEANRN
investment properties located in Hong Kong, the EBZREVE  RRKRBIECIER
acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition BEEREBBEAR-

of assets and liabilities.

The net assets acquired in the transaction were RREFPUEBZFEEAOT
as follows:
HK$’000
FET
Investment properties REME 6,508
Deposits e 7
Accruals St E A (19)
Unsecured loan payable to the director BN FESHEIKFER (6,493)
7
Assignment of unsecured loan payable to the EZEERNTFESCEEKBER
director 6,493
Total consideration, satisfied by cash BAE RS 6,500
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WREEELECZHESREFE
Cash consideration paid 2HRERE 6,500
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. HEME A
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE_Z——H+-H=+—HLFE
On 16 October 2012, the Group disposed of R-ZB-—Z—F+A+xEB xEEEB
the investment property held by Dynamic Eagle LUK {E 686,000 8B R — BB IE=FH
by selling the entire issued share capital of il € Dynamic Eaglez 232 & 1T K
Dynamic Eagle to an independent third party at a K > BLHE Dynamic EagleiZB 2R E
consideration of HK$686,000. The disposal was % - Dynamic Eagle2EEREBEZ
completed on 16 October 2012. Details of the FEHINAT

assets and liabilities of the Dynamic Eagle were
set out as follows:

HK$’000
FET
Investment properties REME 700
Deposits and prepayments RERBENKIE 7
Accruals and other payables Bt ERRHEMENRIE (21)
686
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB ARz W :

Cash consideration RERE 686
Net assets FEE 686

Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HESHEEEACESRAEE
Cash consideration received EWRERE 686
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 Bl Z —F——F+_-_HA=+—HIFE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38.

For the year ended 31 December 2011

On 15 December 2011, the Group entered into
an agreement for disposing of the entire issued
share capital of Advance Top at a consideration
of HK$1. The disposal was completed on 15

HEMB AT (#)
BE_Z2——F+-A=+t—HLHFE

R-ZFB-——F+ZA+THA  AKEEF]
Vi ARE1BTHESH 22
EBRTRA - HESFER=-ZFT——F
T-At+HBARER GHEEHZEERK

December 2011. Details of the assets and BEZHEBEINOT :
liabilities of the Advance Top Group were set out
as follows:
HK$’000
FET
Intangible assets mEEE 48
Property, plant and equipment M- BRERRE 2
Deposits and prepayments ZERFBENRIE 46
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEY 1,490
Amount due to an associate FE B & N\ B FRIE (2,003)
Accruals FEFTE A (3)
Tax payable FEASBE1E (2)
(422)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB AR ZWH !
Cash consideration REeRE =
Net liabilities FEE 422
422
Net cash outflow arising from disposal: HESHEEAZHSMRE FE -
Cash consideration received BWEERE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERREEEY 1,490
1,490
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

39. COMMITMENTS 39. &g
(a) Lease commitments (a) FHERIE
The Group as lessee AEBERE-EA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RERBR > AEERERT 5 E
had commitments for future minimum lease RREE-HAEMET T HELER
payments under non-cancellable operating Wz HEHREESALEOT :

leases in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

The Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E-_F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 1,489 706
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERF
(BEEEME) 1,985 -
3,474 706
Operating lease payments represented ReHSEAREREARLIEYE
rentals payable by the Group for its office FEA2EE HYFTERFIY=F
premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for BHRERE > MBASTEY=FEFET
an average term of three years and rentals o

are fixed for an average of three years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

39. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(a) Lease commitments (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the
year was HK$5,930,000 (2011: HK$281,000).
The properties are expected to generate
rental yield of 4.2% (2011: 5.2%) on an
ongoing basis. Most of the properties held
have committed tenants with fixed rental for
an average term of two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments:

39. KiE(#E)

(a)

MERE(E)

EEBESHEA

FRARBRzZYWERSKAAE
5,930,000/ (= & — — &
281,00087T) - ZEMEFEHFE
BEE42%(ZF——F :152%) 2
e KBHOBFEZYWECHEBEF
NEEHEEELEFEHABRME 2H&

il

%o

REEHR  AKBEHEBAFITLE
Wz ARREEESHENT :

The Group
rEH

2012 2011

= =

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Within one year —F R 2,375 5,128
In the second to fifth year inclusive SE-ZFREF

(BREEMSF) 729 5,128

3,104 10,256
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

39. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments

At 31 December 2012, the Group had other
commitments of HK$309,000,000 relating to:

the subscription of the second
tranche of convertible notes to be
issued by China Star in the principal
amount of HK$300,000,000 pursuant
to the conditional subscription
agreement dated 21 January 2011. The
subscription of the second tranche
of convertible notes is conditional
upon the fulfillment of the conditions
precedent set out in the conditional
subscription agreement, among other
things, the availability of sufficient fund
by the Company. On 29 June 2012,
the completion date of subscription
was extended from 30 June 2012 to 31
December 2013; and

six building mortgages in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$9,000,000 to
be made to six individuals pursuant
to six building mortgages entered
into between the Group and the six
individuals in February 2012.
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39. RIEE)
(b) Hth#&iE

R=-ZB-Z-f+-A=t+—-R &
SEFETISEBEZHMARS
309,000,000 % 7T

() RETEERBEEHA=-Z
——F—A=-+t—-HZEK
GHREHDESTROTLRSHE
# 300,000,000 Jt 2 55 = #it
ARBREE - RBEF -tk
REEBFERERBH RN
Bz r Gkt (E9EEF)
KRARABEZREESERE
FAEE - R=—ZT——FXxA
“t+hB REBEZZERH
HR-FE-——FX~A=1HIE
BE-F-—=Ft+t=-H=+—
B R

(i) WEBEAEERAZEATIR=ZF
—ZF AN Z REEFRE
B AEEEOZABALR
A S #E 59,000,000 T
ZANEBTIRIE -
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40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders on 12 December 2011, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Option Scheme”) to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 21 January 2002. The
Option Scheme will expire on 11 December 2021.
The purpose of the Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Under the Option Scheme, eligible participants
are full time or part time employees of the Group
(including any directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not,
of the Company or any subsidiary); any holder
of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers,
licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any
sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors of
the Company, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group.

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the above
overall limit, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”).
The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit subject to approval of the shareholders
in general meeting, provided that the Scheme
Mandate Limit as refreshed must not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshed limit.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

40. BB AT 2Z2RS

RER-Z-——F+-AT-HRRE
BrERBRBRR  ARAKRM-IEHE
BRETE(THBRETS D UBMAR=
EEF-A- T -HEMZBRES
gl- BRESAEBR-"F=-—F+=A
tT—HREm BRESIEESAEALH
TEAEERATREBRE  FRARE
HAEEEMABEEM 2RBHD
# -

REBEBRETE  SERATALTEE
ZEBIARBES(BEAQIAHEM
MEBARZEMES  TwBITHFES
T RTIWREEEY)  AEEMBTZ
FAZEZZEMFEA RAEEZE
MEBREELBH - AEH  KEHRK
* BB FAA HER RAEBWR
REA -BEF ZRABREAERR
BAHBETH  ZFXTHEF(BEEM
DHEF)  RARRAEZTE2RHHER
ECERNUEBAEBFELEERMZEM
AL

RITERBEBRESTERAQATEME
BRI EREmMERITEZFEE
BREZTFRT2RMEE ZEREE
EHAEBBREBECHITRMZ30% -
EEMBEREZART  RITERE
BB IR RE ST 8 ] AN 1 B E A H b B8 AR RE 5T
B FRECAEBRERZT TRITZ
BRHBE ERHFEEBERETEE
HEERCBITRH 210% ([sTEIF#E
BRED) ERRASEERRHIEE
ARAB U EHTERERE - HEH%
A EIRERETSEBEHREEN
HEEAEBITRMAZ10% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the shares options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Where
any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive director or their respective
associates and if such grant would result in the
total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and
to be granted (including share options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant to
such person (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, then the proposed grant must
be approved by the shareholders at a general
meeting, with voting to be taken by way of a poll.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee upon
acceptance of the grant of share options. Share
options may be exercised at any time during the
period to be determined and identified by the
board of directors, but in any event no later than
ten years from the date of grant but subject to
the early termination of the Option Scheme.

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company, provided that it shall
be not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.
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BRIFERRME  RREERHER (8
BEZB)EEA12EAHER €&
ERSBEMIEERTZBRERE
BTERESRITEZBRE) RS #HT
E#TRITZROBLE  THBEBECDH#
TRBZ1% - MEAAQXTAEEZRR
FBUFBTESIARETAZHEA
TREEMBRE MRUEGBEERE
BEFRBEOZATREBREER
(B#fEZA) EEA12@ABER - KT
FERERETRHEZBRE(BECT
E-EXHERERTEZBRE)RS
BRIOIRBTROZROBLBHEHLER
ERTROELEH201%  R(i)RRKRMHD
EERHAHzRHENE  REEB
5,000,0008 T -+ BIZZERHBEERRR
BRERARE EURER XM -
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1.00/B T2 A AREBRNE - BIRE
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BETE  EERNAAFTERKEA
HEs+5F HEXBREFARELL
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TEEBRAQRAESEEE  BFER
RUT=ZFEZESE () A2TARMR
RHEBH2WHE (\RONBERH
HERTEER S B 2R HE ; (i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

(Continued)

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

40. BB R F2R 5 (&)

At 31 December 2012, the Company has not RZE-—-F+ZA=+—8 " RER

adopted any share option scheme other than the

Option Scheme.

Details of specific categories of share options are

as follows:

a8l e

BT &S AND T I ERREMEERE

BRESEER FHBAOT :

Share option Exercise
type Date of grant Exercise period price
i IR R Rl RHBAH TR TEE
2002 8 March 2002 8 March 2002 to 7 March 2012 HK$218.07*
—EE-F=ANH —EEZ_F=AN\HZE 218.07 B *
—E--F=A+tH
2004 13 December 2004 13 December 2004 to 12 December 2014  HK$6,507.92"*
—ETNF+=At=H —FENFt+=At=HZE 6,507.92 8 7t **
—F-mF+=A+=H
2007A 22 March 2007 22 March 2007 to 21 March 2017 HK$1,577.60%
—EEtLHF=R=+=H —EEtLF=F=+=HZE 1,577,608 T **
—E—+tH=A=+—H
2007B 31 May 2007 31 May 2007 to 30 May 2017 HK$2,348.40"
—ZTLFRA=1+—H —EEtHERA=+-HZE 2,348.40 3% 7 **
—E—tFHA=TH
2010 13 May 2010 13 May 2010 to 12 May 2011 HK$0.60
—E-ZFHA+=H —E-ZEFHEAR+=HZE 0.60/& 7T
—E-——FHA+ZH
2011 20 October 2011 20 October 2011 to 19 October 2012 HK$1.808*
—E-——%+HB=+H —E2-——%t+B=+HZE 1.80878 T *
—E-—F+A+tNH
2012 4 June 2012 4 June 2012 to 3 June 2013 HK$0.345
—ZE—_FAMNH —E2-_F5-A0HEZE 0.345 87T

The exercise prices are adjusted for the open offer

as completed on 12 August 2011.

The exercise prices are adjusted for the capital

—Z-=£XA=H

REREIEH % -

YL TREER=F-——F/NATZHTHEZ

reorganisation as effective on 8 May 2012.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

40. BB XX F 2R 5 (&)

RZE-——FXANBER=ZT——&+
B+ ERECZEREZAFELHS
FRACEANREEENGE  TX
FIRBEAFTABRRN Z2EHR -

The fair values of the share options granted on 4
June 2012 and 20 October 2011 were measured,
using a binomial option pricing model, by Grant
Sherman. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Share option type

BREER

2012 2011
Share option life 1 year 1 year
BIREFH 16 15
Grant date share price HK$0.345 HK$0.0450
R BHBRE 0.3458 7T 0.0450 T
Exercise price HK$0.345 HK$0.0452
TEE 0.345 T 0.0452 BT
Expected volatility (%) 104.86% 85.54%
TE HR R (%)
Expected lives of share options 0.5 year 1 year
BRE A FH 0.5 16
Dividend vyield (%) 0% 0%
REZE (%)
Risk-free interest rate 0.16% 0.14%

= B R =

BE-_Z——F+-A=+—-HILEER
REZEREZATELNA1,892,000%
T(=ZT——% :1,300,00087T) ' ER
FRIEURBERNZF2HX -

The fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2012
was approximately HK$1,892,000 (2011:
HK$1,300,000) which had been expensed as
share-based payment expenses during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 40. AR EAXIN 2R 5 (#)

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the TREENRBEZE=ZZE—=-—%+=HA
Company’s share options held by directors of the Et—BLFEXAQAES EERE
Company, employees and consultants during the B2 R AR BREZEE :

year ended 31 December 2012:

Number of share options

BREZE
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted Outstanding at
1 January during the during the during the for capital 31 December
Share option type 2012 year year year reorganisation 2012
R-ZB-ZF
Hog-cf 28
-A-H BRAEA =t-H
BRESR WRTE RERRH RERTE REREX kS MATE
(note)
(#i)
2002 226,566 - - (226,566) - -
2004 328,760 - - - (320,541) 8,219
2007A 180,298 - - - (175,791) 4,507
2007B 943,578 - - - (919,989) 23,589
2011 110,200,000 - - (2,755,0000  (107,445,000) -
2012 - 19,800,000 (19,420,000) - - 380,000
111,879,202 19,800,000 (19,420,000) (2,981,566)  (108,861,321) 416,315
Exercisable at the end of the year
RELAFIR 416,315
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.523 HK$0.345 HK$0.345 HK$18.242 - HK$278.939
MELHTEE 15287 0.345% 7 0.345%8 7T 18,2427 - 278,939
Note: Kt -
The numbers of share options are adjusted for the capital BRESERN S —FEREANEBRTH2ZBAK
reorganisation as completed on 8 May 2012. BHEHFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B2 =—F—Z—fF+ _-HA=+—HIFE

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 40. AR FEAXIN 2R 5 (#)

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the TERERBZE-_=E——%+=A8
Company’s share options held by directors of the E+t—BLFEXAQAES EERE
Company, employees and consultants during the B2 R AR BREZEE :

year ended 31 December 2011:

Number of share options

EREHA
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
at 1 January during during the during Adjusted at 31 December
Share option type 2011 the year year the year  for open offer 2011
R=Z--F
RZB--% tZA
-A-H RARRE =t-H
BRESRR WA REARH RERTHR REAXN fFLRE WATE
(note)
(i)
2002 201,940 - - - 24,626 226,566
2004 293,026 - - - 35,734 328,760
2007A 160,701 - - - 19,597 180,298
2007B 841,016 - - - 102,562 943,578
2010 13,580,530 - - (13,580,530) - -
2011 - 110,200,000 - - - 110,200,000
15,077,213 110,200,000 - (13,580,530) 182,519 111,879,202
Exercisable at the end of the year
REATTFE 111,879,202
Weighted average exercise price HK$11.511 HK$0.045 - HK$0.600 - HK$1.523
EFEHEE 11511387 0.045% T - 0.60037 - 152387
Note: BtEt -
The numbers of share options are adjusted for the open BREHERR-_Z——FNATZHERZA
offer as completed on 12 August 2011. FBEFLHFAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

40. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

41.

(Continued)
The following share options granted under the

Option Scheme were exercised in the current
year:

Share options

40.

UROBEAX N 2R S (@)

UTREBRESERH ZBRERAE
FERTE:

Share price at

type Number exercised Exercise date exercise date
BREER BITEHE TEEH RITEBZRE
2012 7,120,000 18 December 2012 HK$0.55
—E-—Ft+=ZA+NH 0.55 & T
2012 12,300,000 21 December 2012 HK$0.50
—E5——H+=-A=+—8H 0.50%8 T

At 31 December 2012, the Company had 416,315
share options outstanding (2011: 111,879,202),
representing 0.16% (2011: 1.41%) of the issued
share capital of the Company at that date.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
set up a defined contribution retirement scheme,
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), for all the eligible employees of the
Group. The Group did not provide retirement
benefits for its employees prior to set up of the
MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,250 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,250 (the “Mandatory Contribution”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the Mandatory
Contribution upon their retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

41.

R=ZB-—=ZF+=ZA=+—-H &4
AE 416315 E RITHEBERE(ZZF
——%F :111,879,2021%) » th AR DX AR
EACBITRA0I6%(ZE——5F:
1.41%) °

RIRBRETE

BE-ZZETHFE+-A—-H ~5EHA
FERERREERY —HERMUIENK
atE — et LBReTE(RERET
B RRUBESTER  AEEL
EHREERMEMEAKER

RiERESFE EEHEAREAH
5% (xZUBEE1,2508 THR)E
HRR - WANRBEHEMR - EE
BAZHRDIREREAH 5% (BREZ U
1,250 8 T AR)FTE(TEBIEMRRK]) -
EEAR6SIEBN - HittRTRRET
EREN B 2 BE B A FI MM o
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fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions
during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011:

(@) Loan to related party

42, EXBEAETRS

BRAGEMBEHRRAEMBOABRESE
N BEZE-——FR-ZFE-——F+=
B=+—BLEERN XEBEETT
BERBEEALRS

(a) BEAEALZER

2012 2011

—E-——F —_E——F

Loan to Advance Top: HK$’000 HK$’000
EHZ2ER FET FET
At 1 January R—A—H 2,003 =
Loan advance during the year FRZEBNGER 5,390 2,003
Impairment loss recognised B ZBEEE (3,865) =
At 31 December (note 25) R+=B=+—8(#tzZ25) 3,528 2,003

(b) Compensation for key management
personnel

Remuneration for key management
personnel, including amount paid to the
directors of the Company and certain of

b) FEEBASHH

FTEEBEAETHN(EEEEME
WMERMFIIRI2ABEESFFA
NRABEBERETRSHFEEZS

the highest paid employees, as disclosed B)WT :
in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements, is as follows:
2012 2011
—E——F —_EFE——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Director fees ok 480 400
Salaries and other allowances HeRkEAMERL 8,930 3,310
Contributions to retirement EBIREFFT R
benefits scheme 70 57
Share-based payment expenses DN - N 608 1,300
10,088 5,067

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G F 5

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % E& 1% & B[R A7)

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn & MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

43.

Capital risk management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and maintain
healthy ratios in order to support its business
and enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or raise and
repay debts. The Group’s capital management
objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the years of 2012 and 2011.

The Company monitors capital using gearing
ratio, which is the Group’s total borrowings over
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

EXREHE

EXRRBEER

AEEEEEACTEERRRELE
BEFEKE RN BEEBRIERUX
SEHEBREARREE -

AEBEEHEEAERIRBEEBR
SHEHARZ  REFIARABELRSE
B AEETHEQRRKE ZRE
BRREBER RITHROIBER
BEBR R-F-—-FR=-ZF——F
W AEEZEXRNEEBR  BERYE
FHESTE -

ADTRAEMELE (DAEELEER
B2 B A A I ) BB o B
—E-—ER-B—-FT-A=t-

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2012 and AEBEEERLLZRNT :
2011 were as follows:
2012 2011
—E-—_F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Total borrowings EEHA%E - =
Less: cash and cash equivalents B RERESEEY (297,967) (217,632)
(297,967) (217,632)
Equity attributable to owners AREEE AEG
of the Company % ¥ 1,521,954 1,237,636
Gearing ratio BEEELER N/A R iE B N/A 38 F
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

fn 8 M35 R

44, $RTH

Categories of financial instruments ERMIAZER
2012 2011
—E——F —=F——4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including ERREWFIE(EHE
cash and cash equivalents) ReRBELEEY) 699,319 593,273
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHERE 129,671 59,132
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFABRRRZ
through profit or loss ETREE
— Listed equity securities — EHRAES 25,199 44,308
— Listed derivatives — EWmTET R - 2,730
— Conversion options embedded in — EWABRRBREERE 2
convertible notes receivables HIRIRIERE 74,256 75,282
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost 8 R AR 9,600 11,787

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
These risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and
price risk.

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G F 5
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AEECERRAREEGTHSINTH
M HEAME  BREEREHEAE
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e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and the
financial guarantees issued by the Group
arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
executive directors of the Company are
responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

44.

SRTITAE

BERABREEEERBEKE)

&Rk

AEEMAZHREF S RBET
EBRAKEFE 2 ERIERMSE
BYAEEHRMBERIZESE
ERBRARERS IR R
HERIATHMEEZREE -

RAREEREEERR AT ZH
TESAEEEEERE  FEH#
ERHMEERF - UBRATD KN
DT mEBiREE - it &
SEREZHP AR BT ESEREE
ZAWEEEE - RS FAK
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| B BB AORUE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests
with the board of directors of the Company,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework to meet the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate level of cash and cash equivalents,
by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of the financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.

44. €T A (&

BEEBREEEERBEKE)

(b) REBEZEE

RBETRBZEREEHANF
EXEgARE MEFSCRIGE
ZRBETRABERERE UGS
AEEEY PHRRPBERR
HESEBE AT - AKEEBSE
FEARESRBASEEYKT &
BEZAIRERRSRE UK
BUESHEERAEZEHFE
LEBRRBESER

TRHAVNAEERHFTEEHE
BZHTENEHE - ZRERE
BASERERYZ&FAHZ
TREERFRASREMER
ZREENEREAESHERE -

3 months
Less than 1to3 to1year 1to5 Over
1 month months =f8A years 5 years Total
SR-BR -Z=f8A B-F -ZHfE  HENL &3t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEx TEx TiEx TEx Tz
2012 —E--f
Accruals and other FEERRE M
payables ERzE 9,600 - - - - 9,600
2011 “E-—-%
Accruals and other s BRRE M
payables 78 11,787 = = = = 11,787
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(c)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
mainly through its investment in listed
equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return
profiles.

(1)

Price risk on listed securities under
listed equity securities, listed derivatives
and available-for-sale investments

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. For sensitivity
analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate is
increased to 15% in the current year as
a result of the volatile financial market.

If equity prices had been 15% higher/
lower (2011: 15%):

— Post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2012 would increase/
decrease by HK$3,780,000 (2011:
HK$7,056,000). This is mainly due
to the changes in fair value of
listed equity securities and listed
derivatives; and

— other comprehensive income
would increase/decrease
by HK$19,425,000 (2011:
HK$8,844,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-
for-sale investments.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

44.

SRTITAE

BERABREEEERBEKE)

()

B EkRE

AEBTERELELTRAZBSRE
MmAZRAERRER - EEEUT
BRREOREE2REASER
Lk o

() LHRFAESF  LHITETA
RuRHERERT LEF
Z 1B R

UTHREDMIDRBERERE
HAR 2 IR AN B 4% [ B AR 42 1 B
EeRBBRESHMS » ANF
ESRERTmMmEKEMm L
FrE15% o

i BRAEAZIE N, D 15%
(ZE——F 1 15%) :

— HE-F-_-F1-H
=Et-RLEFEZFRE
EE BRBE 1808 A % 3B
B 43,780,000 T (=
2 ——4 :7,506,0008
7)) FEARLEHEAR
EEREWITETAZ
AFEEZBEAY R

— HttzEWESEM
A 219,425,000 T(=
T — — 5 :8,844,000%
7T EEHRAHEE
REZ DN FESEBME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(c) Price risk (Continued)

(1)

Price risk on conversion option
embedded in convertible notes
receivables

The Group is required to estimate the
fair value of the conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes
receivables at the end of the reporting
period with changes in fair value to be
recognised in the consolidated income
statement as long as the convertible
notes receivables are outstanding. The
fair value adjustment will be affected
either positively or negatively, amongst
others, by the changes in share price
and its volatility of the convertible notes
issuers.

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the
exposure to the change of share price
and its volatility of the convertible notes
issuers at the reporting date.

If the share prices of those convertible
notes issuers had been 15% (2011:
15%) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the
year would increase/decrease by
HK$13,505,000/HK$13,360,000 (2011:
increase/decrease by HK$16,783,000/
HK$14,926,000), as a result of changes
in fair value of conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes
receivables.
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44,

fn 8 M35 R

SRIAE

BEEBREEEERBEKE)

(c)

Bk (E)

(i) FEWATEREZEAE L IEE

EEZESmERE

REBEAERREHRMGETREK
THRREBEAS 2 HIRRER
ZRVE - fdE B RITEEY
ARREE - AIARGRE WS
READFEEE - X FEH
BEZ(APEB)REZHR
AR EERTAZRERE
EHREEE -

ARATRERBERBE AR 2R
ESPRABBREERTAZ
REKEEEATHRED
#r e

WEZETRBREEBRTAZ
BELHFTHIE% (ZF
——®F:15%) M B H 4t
BEEFTTE BENKA
BREERAS2ABEERE
KEE 2 BB EEF K E
tn R 413,505,000 7T
13,360,000 T (=& ——
F &, R 216,783,000
HBIT,14,926,00087T) °
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e BEERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(c) Price risk (Continued)

(1)

Price risk on conversion option
embedded in convertible notes
receivables (Continued)

If the volatility of share prices of those
convertible notes issuers had been
15% (2011: 15%) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year would increase/decrease by
HK$1,522,000/HK$1,629,000 (2011:
increase/decrease by HK$6,363,000/
HK$7,996,000), as a result of changes
in fair value of conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes
receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analyses are unrepresentative of the
inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation
of the conversion options embedded in
the convertible notes receivables and
involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

44.

SRTITAE

BERABREEEERBEKE)

(c)

Bk (E)

(i) FEWATEREZEAE L IEE

EEZERERE(E)

MZEURREBEHRTAZR
BRELHA - TEKI15% (=
T——F 1 15%)MAE At
SBHERTE EDEKTE
BREBAEZHBBREREZA
FEEE AEBRAEE
ZHBRB BB GE MBS
1,522,0003% 7T /1,629,000
T(ZZ——F 8 m mD
6,363,000;% 7T /7,996,000 &
JT) °

EEERS  AREBYRBRER
SERNSZRBBEERINYF
BEfESAEBzZEEBRY
kZBEASEEMETAIZE
ZEHMEYE  BBREDT
TRURERASH SRR -

Annual Report 2012 —Z —— G4



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

— The fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded in active markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid and ask prices respectively.

— The fair values of derivative instruments
are calculated using quoted prices. Where
such prices are not available, a discounted
cash flow analysis is performed using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of
the instruments for non-optional derivatives,
and option pricing models for optional
derivatives.

— The fair value of the debt portion of
convertible notes receivables and the
conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivables are determined based
on discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of
the instruments and option pricing models,
respectively.

— The fair values of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44.

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Except as detailed in the following table, the
directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values:

TRITAHE)
TRMTRAZAVEE)
BRTRHAMLEN  RRABDVEZRBRE

SUBBRACEREEREREEZ
FREEREEAFEES

2012 2011
—E-CF —E2——-F
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
RREE DNFE BREE NFE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale AHtHEERERE
financial assets 129,671 129,719 59,132 59,175

The following table provides an analysis
of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree
to which the fair value is observable:

— Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

— Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and
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TREHBDIABEREULATEFEZS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44, BT R (&)
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) EMIBZ2AFEE)
— Level 3 fair value measurements are those — HEIRAFEFENFTALFERE
derived from valuation techniques that AEEmSHEcEERNER 2
include inputs for the asset or liability that BERESE -

are not based on observable market data.

The following table shows an analysis of financial TRETUAFESERRAFELHEZ
instruments recorded at fair value by the fair SR TEDH :
value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EAR E2k EIR @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FE FE FE FET

At 31 December 2012 i e 3
+=ZA=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets A[{EHESREE
— Listed equity securities —EHRAES 129,499 - - 129,499
Financial assets at fair value RAFEFABRE
through profit or loss ZERMERE
— Listed equity securities — EmRAESE 25,199 - - 25,199
— Conversion options — R EE
embedded in convertible REZHIB
notes receivables BRIERE - - 74,256 74,256
At 31 December 2011 R=—Z——F
+=A=+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESREE
— Listed equity securities —EmRAE S 58,960 - - 58,960
Financial assets at fair value BAFEGFABRRE
through profit or loss ZEMEE
— Listed equity securities — EHRAES 44,308 - = 44,308
— Listed derivatives — EHITETE 2,730 — — 2,730
— Conversion options — BRI EE
embedded in convertible REZRB
notes receivables BIERE - - 75,282 75,282
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 MER F1RF2R 2B HEE
in both years. B
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 BZ=—F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. SRET R (&)
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) ERMIBEZAFE(E)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements ZEECRMEEZEIN AT ETELHR
of financial assets: ME
Conversion
options
embedded in
convertible
notes
receivables
FE U AT R AR
FBREZ
RBRERE
(note 27)
(Kizt27)
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2011 R-E——%—HF—H —
On initial recognition RIS 75,020
Gain arising on change in fair value of HBPBREREDBD 2 AT ELE
conversion option components BEE W 262
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—HEK
—_E—_F%—HF—H 75,282
On initial recognition AR TR 5,549
Early redemption of convertible notes REECATRRERE (6,617)
Gain arising on change in fair value of HBPRERBOZATELE
conversion option components EEzWs 42
At 31 December 2012 R—_EBE——_HF+—-_H=+—H 74,256
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011,
the Group had a material contingent liability
relating to a claim brought by China Finance &
Assets Management Limited (“China Finance”)
in the High Court Action No. 526 of 2010 against
Rexdale for failing to pay a service fee in the sum
of HK$25,000,000 to China Finance.

No provision for the claim brought by China
Finance was made in the consolidated financial
statements as Lafe Corporation Limited has
undertaken to indemnify and keep indemnified
the Group against any all losses, claims,
damages, penalties, actions, demands,
proceedings, judgement and costs arising from
or in connection with the claim.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

On 14 January 2013, the Company entered
into a conditional placing agreement with
Kingston Securities Limited, pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place, through Kingston Securities
Limited, on a best effort basis, a maximum
of 47,000,000 new shares of the Company to
not fewer than six independent professional
investors at a price of HK0.645 per share.
The new shares are allotted and issued
under the general mandate granted to the
directors by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 31
May 2012. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 14 January 2013 for
more details.

The placing of 47,000,000 new shares
was completed on 24 January 2013 and
raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$29,860,000 for use in property
investment in Hong Kong.

On 18 February 2013, the Company
proposed to seek approvals from the
shareholders for (i) exercising the conversion
rights attaching to the bonus convertible
notes issued by China Star in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$6,079,806.76
to convert their principal amount into
607,980,676 new shares in China Star; and
(i) granting a mandate to the Company
for disposing of the 303,990,338 shares in
China Star that already held by the Group
and the 3,524,647,342 new shares in China
Star to be allotted and issued to the Group
pursuant to the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the bonus convertible
notes and the convertible notes issued
by China Star in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$350,000,000. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 18
February 2013 for more details.
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46. ERHPEEE

R-ZZE—=F5—HA+WAB X217
EHeFERHEEGROATLEHKRYE
BERHSE Bl XATEBKML
EEEBRSANERHERATRSE
HEELER0.6458 T ZEE
BARDRARNEBBLEEREERE
B % 47,000,000 I 37 IR 17 ° ¥ IR
BIRERRRARAAR=-ZT—=
FRA=1T—HETZRRBAFK
SIRFES - RIBEHBRE
T-E—DSHBBFLHEEAQIARS
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Fi & 47,000,000 BRI R ER=F
—Z5-BZ-t+HBRK XHBE
FRri§ /IR #5849 29,860,000 /8 7T
REBBYMERE -

R-ZZE—=5"A+/1\H > KxQHF
EEERREMENTEPHE
B 1T N & # % 56,079,806.76
BT 2 ALFI AT B R IR OAT M A
Z2HRRE DHRBHEAKAEEAR
607,980,676 R PRI EFH KRB ; &
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_—_F——#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(c)

On 8 March 2013, the Group entered
into a loan agreement with an individual.
Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Group
has conditionally agreed to grant an
unsecured loan in the principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 to the individual. The loan
is unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per
annum and maturing on the date falling on
the second anniversary from the date of
drawdown. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 8 March 2012 for more
details.

On 13 March 2013, the board of directors of
the Company announced the proposed issue
of not less than 152,224,414 new shares
and not more than 152,432,572 new shares
of the Company by way of open offer to the
qualifying shareholders for subscription at a
price of HK$1.20 per share on the basis of
one new share for every two existing shares
held on 5 April 2013. The net proceeds
from the open offer are estimated to be not
less than HK$180,020,000 but not more
than HK$180,270,000 and intended to be
used for financing the expansion of the
loan portfolio of the Group’s money lending
business and/or the potential subscription
of the convertible bonds to be issued by a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 13
March 2013 for more details.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MBGHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B Z_-_F—_—#+ _F=+—HIFFEZ

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(e)

On 21 March 2013, the Group entered into
a subscription agreement with China AU
Group Holdings Limited (“China AU”, stock
code: 8176). Subject to the fulfillment of
the conditions set out in the subscription
agreement, the Group has agreed to
subscribe for the convertible notes in the
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 to be
issued by China AU at their face value.
The convertible notes are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and maturing on the date
falling on the 30 months from the date of
their issue. The convertible notes carry
rights entitling the holders thereof to convert
their principal amount into new shares in
China AU at an initial conversion price of
HK$1.00 per share at any time prior to the
maturity date. On the same date, the Group
also entered into a loan agreement with
China AU. Pursuant to the loan agreement,
the Group has conditionally agreed to grant
an unsecured loan in the principal amount
of HK$40,000,000 to China AU. The loan
is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per
annum and maturing on the date falling
on the third anniversary from the date of
drawdown. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 21 March 2013 for
more details.

47. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were

approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 25 March 2013.
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_ Five=Year Financial Summary

AFEMBERE

For the years ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BHLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-Zf ZE2--f CZE-TF CEZTNF CZE2EN\E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results E4
Turnover EEE 67,442 79,174 78,200 74,711 19,253
Profit/(loss) from REFESEER 2R
continuing operations M/ (E#8) 207,494 (187,854) (353,053) 415,731 (107,240)
Finance costs MEER - - (3,041) (8,086) (3,350)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHANER,/ (EiE) 207,494 (187,854) (356,094) 407,645 (110,590
Income tax (expense)/ FigH (i), /ER
credit (1,236) 32,598 (363) 14,493 13,854
Profit/(loss) for the REFESEER
year from continuing KEEER,/
operations (518) 206,258  (155256)  (356,457) 422,138 (96,736)
Profit/(loss) for the year RECHKRILEREER 2
from discontinued KEERF/
operation (B#8) - - - (5,576) (127,772)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERA/(B8) 206,258 (155,256) (356,457) 416,562 (224,508)
Dividends 38 - 198,359 33,063 - -
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E-Zf ZE2--% CZE-TF CETNF CZE2EN\E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Total assets BEHLE 1,603,612 1,263,432 1,397,404 1,480,772 1,524,280
Total liabilities SEEE (81,660) (25,797 (52,741) (109,728) (629,857)
Net assets EEFE 1,521,952 1,237,635 1,344,663 1,371,044 894,423
Capital and reserves KAREE AEM
attributable to owners RARGRE
of the Company 1,521,954 1,237,636 1,344,663 1,371,044 894,423
Non-controlling interests  JE¥RPR#EZ (2 (1) - - -
1,521,952 1,237,635 1,344,663 1,371,044 894,423
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Particulars of Investment Properties and Assets Classified as Held for Sale
BREMRRSBAKFEHECEEFT

The particulars of the Group’s investment properties

at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

No. 267 Ma Yau Tong,

Tseung Kwan O,
New Territories,
Hong Kong

BB S ERTFE 267 5%

No. 267A Ma Yau Tong,

Tseung Kwan O,
New Territories,
Hong Kong

BB S ERTIHEE267AR

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD

Location

o B

Factories A and B on the 1st
Floor and the Flat Roof, the
Whole of 6th-12th Floors,

Roof, External Walls,
Lavatories A & B and
Carpark Nos. 1-3 and

14-21 on Ground Floor,

Lucky (Kwun Tong)
Industrial Building,
Nos. 398-402 Kwun

Tong Road, Kwun Tong,

Kowloon,
Hong Kong

BB NEBIEBIEE 398-402 5%
HEERERAE—EIKRARBE
H¥Ya - RE+=#2E - X6
IME S TAEFEARBR
FEH1-35E R 14-21 SRE

Lot number

1 BR 4 5%

Lot No. 646 In
D.D. 401

AEER-Z—-F+=-RB=1t—H2ZREY

LB 401 IR

646 %%

Lot No. 647 In
D.D. 401

LENDEE 401 HHEREE

647 5

FOR SALE

Lot number

1 B 4 5%

367/622 equal and
undivided shares of
and in Section A of
Kwun Tong Inland
Lot No. 195

BIEA M ERSE 19555
ARR622119%H
A 222 367 13

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 % B % & B[R A7)

EFBAT
REWZE
Category
of the
Usage lease term
iR HE 5
Residential Medium
= H HA
Residential Medium
F= i HR
PERBEHEZEE
Category
of the
Usage lease term
A% HEER
Industrial Medium
I R HER

Group’s
interest

REEER

100%

100%

Group’s
interest

rEEER

100%
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